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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORTY
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

ABOUT US

nternational Entertainment Holdings Limited {the Company} is an intemationd nhaiding group majority owned
by Providence Equity Portness. The principal activity of the Company s to hold companies thal cany out
complemenicry activiies across the value ¢hain of ive entertainnent and theatre-related activity, principatly
in the UK, USA, arxd Continental Europe [the Group). The Group considers that these morkets have significan?
potenticl for growth and forms the basis For the Group's strategy of further growth and expansion.

The Company's main holding is The Ambassador Theatre Group Limited (ATG), ATG is a giohal leader in live
entertainment and is a fully integrated operaler acrass the enlire live entertainment value chain, with activities
In venue gparations, ticketng, matketing services and content production. ATG operates in Gemany through
its subssidiary pMehrl-BB Entertairment GmbH {Metrl-BB], which was formed by the merger of the Menrt Group
{acquired n May 2018] with the B8 Entertainment Group of companies {acguired in Moy 2015).

OVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is focused on providing a high level of service to two groups of customers; producers ond audience
members. By making the end-to-end “customar joumney” of our audisnce top priority, we wili ensure that our
venues are the best stages for the highest quality content developed by both our own in-house s well as 39
party producsrs.

Venue Operations

The oim of our venue operations division is to provide o greal service to both our producers and our audience
members. We generate revenues from renting our venues to productions os well as selfing food ond
beverages to our audience membars.

Over the jast inemcial year, 10 hely mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the Group's capital expenditure has
been rephased ond pricditzed on essenfial maintenance. However, as we move towards the eqasing of
government restrictions and re-opening of venues, investment inimproving the quality of venues to enhance
our custiomers' thealre-going expenence will resume. Many of the Group's venues are histaric buildings
which have on important significonce in their flocal arecs. investment in the maintenance of these buiidings
is cenirgt to the Group's awstodianshiny of them for the benefits of fulire generalions of oudiences. The
development and improvement of these venues to meet the needs and expeciations of today's audiences
ond producers are agually important,

In the UK, the Group owns ond operotes some of the most iconic venues wilh 10 'y London and 2§ more
across the country. The Group operates 15 thaghes in the UIA, Including two Broadway venues (the Lyric
and the Hudson), and 13 theatres in other US cities, The Group also operates five venues in Gemany as part
of the Mahrl-BB Entertainment Group.

Ticketing

The Group operates the largest theatre ticketing business in the UK and sells the majority of tickets 1o shows
in its venues through its own ticketing businesses.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Content Production

A key strategy of the Group's Content Production division is to find, secure, and praduce high-quality shows
for both ATG and third-party venves. the Group develops and produces new content in addilion to co-
procucing, investing in and presenting content from independent producers.

Markeling

The Group through its subsidiary cormpanies of AKA Group, headquardered in London ond BB Group, head-
guartered in Monnheim, Germany. is able to offer a wide range of marketing services, which are indine and
complementary to the Group's overall strateqy. AKA, a global entertainment morketing and media
advertising agency for the live entertainment, arts and cultural industries has offices in London, Manchester,
New York and Ausiralia. AKA has continued to support the Group's sikategy of developing independent yet
complementary business lines to provide a full-service experience 1o clients within the thecfre and live
entertainment industry. Furthermaore, AKA has seen its business offering extend further afield with clients not
directly tinked to the live entertainment industry, such as museums, galleries, gardens and zoological centres.

Alongside its production services, Mehr-BB Group, via ils subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services for live
entertainmant productions in Geman-speaking Europe.

REVIEW OF FY21

The Group's operations were significantly disrupted in FY21 due to the CQVID-19 Pandemic. All jusdictions in
which the Group operates had social distancing restictions which required the closure of all #s venues.
Throughout the year, the Group has been focused on consesving cash through cost restruciuning and supplier
negoliations as wel os implementing ovailcble govemment support, in the fomm of furlough schemes, tax
puaymen? defenrck, business rates relief and grants.

Tha Group has renegatiated ifs covenants with its lenders and extended the maturily of its senior loans 10 2025,
Tha Group also roised additional funds from a new minority investor, Amplify Capital investment Ple. Lid, which
is owned by Siverdcke Partners.

The Group has postponed the majority of its programming into the fulure and as o result, has retaired a high
proportion of the bolance of advances sales of tickets sold pre-COVID-19 shul down.

The loss before tax for the pericd was £147.1 milfion {2020: £33.7 milion]. Curent year and prior yeor losses ore
attributable o the impoct of COVID-1? on the Group.

Commmisinsdtn: livtnem=l Llrn



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPis)

i R EEr Revenue Operating loss
ST £41.8m , , (£94.6m)
I . P -1 j2020: £2.2m operating Sv
. o [2020: £476.7m) B pfoﬁi] ‘ L
; 0

oo T ' § w—r-eme

Non-financial KPls;

Due to the closure of venues throughout FY21, the non-finangial KPIs ysuolly used to monitor the business
have netl been corsidered by managerrent, with focus instead on cash managament and ¢ost reduction,

Financlal KPis:

- Revenue of £41.6m decremed 713 from 2020 as COVID-1 ? forced the closure of alf of the Group’s
venues lor the full yeor. Flease refer to note 3 for gepgraphical anolysi of revenue.

- The operating loss of £24.6m results from the reduction In revenue, offset by lower cost of sales ond
action tokan by management to reduce operaling expenses,

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FlOwW

The position of the Group atf the period-end is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 40 and 41, the consolidated staotement of cash flows on page 44 and in the related notes on pages 45
ta 89.

- Cash from operating activilies was a net cash outfiow of £108.5 miilion {2020 infiow of £42.2 milion). This
reflects the impact of COVID-19 on the yeor's frading, with an operating loss of £94.6 millon {2020:
operating profit £2.2 million} and negative net working capital cash fiow of £43.5 milion [2020; positive
E10.7 million).

- nvesting cash flows include £14.8 million {2020: £54.1 milion) of capital expenditure. Capital expenditure
was minimired in the year to preserve cash. This was offsetl by £1.4 milion {2020; £1.% milion) net
recoupment in show investrnents In the period.

= Net debt, including firance lease fiabilities, 1§ corsistent with prior yedr at £564. Tmillion [2020; £564.2
miion}. New shareholder loans of £135.0 milkon were ralsed, offset by repaymaent of £85.5 miion of bank
ioans and £11.1 million of finance lease repayments. Closing cash was £185.4 million, up ram £139.1 milfion
at March 2020, and included a £2.4 million ascrow balonce {2020: £8.8 milion).

- New shares were issued during ihe year. raising £151.3 million.

3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Leverage and kquidity

The Group agreed with its lenders lemporary amendments o the EBITDA colculation used to test its leverage
covenant, which toke into account the impact of reduced troding. Under this amended agreement the
Group complied with its ned leverage covenant throughout the period.

The net leverage covenont specifically focuses on the draown senior debt of the Group s¢ excludes

sharehelder loans and finonce lease liabilities (refer io note 19).

The cash balance used for leverage covenont testing excludes the cash balance held by subsidiaries outside
of the banking group of £65.8m at 27 March 2021 [2020: Nilj.

Net debt for covenant purposes at 27 March 2021 was £310.3 million {£358.0 milkon of senior debt plus £67 .4
milion of revolving credit faciity net of cash {exciuding escrow] of £117.1 milion}. This was E13.0 milion highsr
than the prior yeor ending bolance of £297.3 million.

Cash As at 27 March 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £185.4 mifion [2020:
£139.1 milian), including escrow accounts which are held for use primarily in connection
with specific productions, The Group also had additional available revolving facilities of
£5.6 milion {2020: £5.6 milion), The cash balance increased by £446.4 million in the period,
while freely available cash increased by £52.7 million.

£m For the §2 week
period ended

27 march 2021

Operating cash flows {108.5}
investing cash flows t12.3)
Financing cash flows 170.2
Net cash flows 48.4
mpact of foreign exchonge {29
Movement in cash balance 454

Santibivite tndarmal (o



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Bonrowings  The Group has iotal available bank facillies of £433.0 milion, of which £5.5 milion remains
undrawn of the period end,

The senior debt is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the Group.
The senior facilities ogreement also requires the Group to comply with certain covenants.
As at 27 March 2021, e Group wos in compliance with its covenants,

The Group alse has loans from its shareholders totaling £13%.2m. including accrued interest
{2020: ENil}. Interest on shareholder loans is non-cash paying ond accrues ot fixed rates
ranging berween 4.0% and 10.0%.

The Group has a finance lease creditor of £1466.1 mitfion [2020: £177.2 milion].

The maturity of the debt Is shown in notes 19, 20 and 28 to the financicl statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsaquent to the pericd end. the Group completed the acquisition of Nedetlander Detrolt LLC and
Broadwaqy San Franciscs LLC for total consideration of £173.7 million. This acquisition adads two thealres in San

Francisco and three in Detroit 1o the Group's portfolio of owned and operated venues.

Sutasequent to the period end the Geoup received €5.4 million of COVID-] 9 related government grani income
from the Germah govemmaenl,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong lundamentals that underpin the theatrical indusiry combined with the quality of our porifolio of
venues contribute to the Directors® confidence in the long temm growth of the business in future years. In order
to withstand the curent challenges of COVID-1?, the Group will continue to judiciously monitar its cost base
and preserve ond protect iis liquickly position whilst ensuing that we are adequately prepared for G speedy
return 1o opercations,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the importance of its environmental responsibilities, monitors its impact on the
ervironment, and designs and implements appropriate policies to minimise any domage that might be
caused by the Group's activities.

The Group seeks to reduce the environmentol impact of its operations through responsible resource
procurement and consistently thrives to eliminate waste with aur supply chain partners. Specificaly, we are
driving efficient energy procurement, diverting o of our waste from landfil ond where possible, instoling
enargy efficient systems in our venues. As an organisation aur enviconmental impact is a key pillar of our
overarching Comarate Social Responsibility strategy.

The closure of the Group's venues throughout the year coused the majority of its ongeing environmental
impact inttiatives to ba paused. However, the ciosure of all venues and offices has initself reduced the Group's

environmenial impact.
Greenhouse Gas Reporting

The Group s required by the Companies Act 2004, Regulations 2013 1o measure and reports its direct and
indirect UK greenhouse gas emissions,

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are from sources that are owned or confroiled by fhe Group. indirecf
greenhouse gas emissions are from sources owned or controlled by other antities bul are o cansequence of
the activities of the Group.

The methodology used o calculate emissions Is based on the Greenhouse Gas Protocol’s corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard approach, The UK gavemment conversion factor guidance (“DEFRA"}
was used to calcukale emission factors.

Greanhouse gas reporting i split between three categories. the explonations for thase are as follows;

Scope | Direct emissions confrollad by the Group. This includes gas and o used for heating as weil os emissions

from compaony cars {bath owned and leosed].
Scope 2. Indirect emissions exclusivety composed of purchased electicity within the Group.

Scope 3 Indirect emissions which occur of sowrces which are not owned or controlled by the Group ond
which ate not classed o scope 2 emissions. This includes emissions from rental vehicles where the Group
purchased the fuet.

Sensitivity: Intermal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Absolute UK carbon emissions (fonnes of COy) Yeat ended 27 March 2021
Scope | ’ o T 203586
Scope 2 756.87
Scope 3 792
- 3,000.45
221
UK carbon intensity
Tonnes of CO: per £'000 of revanue ' 0.14
Tonnes of CO: per emplioyee 0.8y
OUR PEOPLE
Number ol employees at 27 March 2021 Women Men Tolal
Directors of the company T ' 4 5
Other senior management 20 43 &3

Employees 2,205 1,291 3,996

The Group complies with all relevant legisiofion including those specifically targeted at preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the organisation by the requisite policies. The Group
is committed to ensuring the heaith, safety and welfare of its emplayees as far as is recsonably practicable.
The Group seeks 1o ensure that sialutory duties are met at ol fimes and that it eperates effective health and
safety management policies and procedures,

The Group's policy is 1o consult and discuss with employees, through unions. stoff councils, meetings ond
company-wide surveys, matters likely to affect employees® interests. Information on matters of concem to
smployeas is given through information bultetins ona reports which seek 1o achieve a common awarensss on
the port of ol employees of the financiai and economic factors affecting the Group's performance.

The Group conlinues ta run its *Be a Star” and “Be a Stor Monager” training programmes. focusing on Front of
House and Box Office stoff rom when they join the Group. developing their skilis 1o improve customer
expenence, ond further along the line, the key aspects of people management. The Group alse uns ¢ o
year “Rising Star” progrormme for some of our highest polential junior staff as well as a leadership course for
sericr managers “Leading Lighls®. In FY20, we launched our sicth cohort of Rising Slars, and o third Leading
Lights class.

The Groups policy is 1o recruit disabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fil. All necessary
assistance with initial raining courses is given. Once emploved. o career plon s developed so as to ensure

suitable opporunities for each disabled person. Arrangements are made. wherever possible, for retraining
14
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

employvess who become disabiled, o enable them to perform work identitied as appropriate tae their optitudes
and abilities.

We continue to support internal engagement initiatives such as Internafional Women's Gay. Pride ond Menial
Health Awareneass weagk, with more people becoming involved in all geographies,

Soclal and Communily Involvement

The Group recognises that regional theatres, both in the UK ond USA, are rooted in the heart of their local
cammunities.

Many of the UK regional theatres have Cregtive Leaming departments which take a leading role in
cantributing to the social cohasion of their communities in partnership with charities, trusts and organisations
nationwide, including several local authorities and further education partners. Over the coune of o vear,
Craative Leaming con boast more than 70,000 participants of ofl ages and abilittes throughout the UK.

Pegple of o wide variety of ages and abilities participate in the Group's Credative Learning aclivities. Ofen
inspired by the productions at venues, these can include werkshops with visliting companies, backstage fours
ond pre-show talks, and ciso Youth Theatres, summer schools and classes for aduidts. In addition to this, many

regional venues are used for several weoks a yaecr by kecal amateur production companies.

On Broadwdy, the Lyfic Thedtre hosts an autism friendly performance of Harry Potter and the Cursed Child,
enlightening more than 200 children and adults who are diagnesed with an autism spectum disorder or cther
sensitivity issues and their families and friends. Partnering with Theatre Development Fund (TDF), slight
adjustments to the production have been made so thal the show 8 prasented in g fiandly, supportive
environmen!, The Hudson Theatre hosts the 52nd St Project ot @ performance of David Byme's American
Yopia, Founded in 198], the $2nd Street Project is o communily-based arls organisation, with a mission to
bring together kids from Hell's Kitchen in Manhattan with theatre professionals 1o create orginal theatre
offered free 1o the general public. Teenagers from the organisation’s song wiiting group enjoyed the show
and were defightedly surprised by a "Meet 8 Greel™ with David and ihe enfire band after the performance.
The evening also served os a fundraiser for the Project where money raised would support the Beloved Non-
Profit Organization.

Senpitivity: Internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CAUTIONARY STATEMENY

The Strategic Report has been prepored solely to provide informalion to shareholders o assess how the
directors have perfomed their duty to promote the success of the Group. The repart contains certain forword-
locking statements, which ore made by the directors in good loith based on the information available to them
at the time that the report was signed, but are subject 16 the inherent uncertainties underlying any forward-
tooking information and s such should be treated with caution.

APPROVAL

This report wos opproved and authorsed forissue by the Board of Dractors on 21 July 2021 and signed on ils

behalf igy?
John Oidcom
Director

18
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK FERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3172 Statement

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172{1) COMPANIES ACT 2004

The Board of Directors of Infemational Entertairment Holdings Limited {“IEH") consider, both individually and
together, that they have acted In the way they consider, in good faith, would be most ikely 1o promote the
success of the Compuany for the benefit of its stakenhotders as awhole (having regard 1o the stakeholders and
matters set out In section 172{1} {a-1] of the Act} in the decisions taken during the period ended 27 March
2021,

$172{1) A “The likely consequence of any decision In the long term”
The Directors have taken the decision they believe best support 1EH's strategic ambitions. Maore information
can be found under ‘future Developments’ on page 5.

$172(1) B “The interest of the compony’s employees™
The Diractors recognise that IEH employees are fundamental and core 1o our business and the delivery of our
shrategic ambitions, More information can be found under *Our Feople' on page 14,

S5172{1) C "The need o foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others™

IEM stakeholders are customers. producers, suppliers, employees, shareholders and lenders and the Board
recognises the need to regularly review the Idenlity of its stakeholders as it mokes decisions. The Board
promates accountabiity and transparency with all stakeholders.

The Company's fundomental belief in promoting the public good is demonskated and supportaed oy our
Sericr Leadership's active engagement across industry bodies and our stakeholder cammunity,

The Group has recently nfrocduced new customer angagement surveys which will delermine the: Net Promoter
Score {NPS) of the Group ~ this process is run by an extemcl compony to ensure independence. NFS
performance is being reported to tha Board on a monthly basis, Although this is a new process, the findings
are being used to improve cusiomer engagement with knowledge being shared across all of out business.

An onnual employee 'Compony Day' delivered in london provides a briefing on the Company's
perfonnance and allows individuals 1o roiie questions and concems. The Group monitors s employes's
commitment ta ils guiding framework by asking members of senior management 1o submit an ennual
declaration confimning whether they have complied with the Group's Code of Conduct. If any employee
wishes ta highight any potential breaches 1o the Code of Conduct, they con contact the independent
whistieblowing services provider and g formal investigation follows, with anonymoaus reporting o the Audit
Committee. Annuat employee engagement surveys are performed 1o highfight areas requiing improvement
in communication of the Group's purpose. The Board considers the resuits of all employee sngagement
surveys a good barometer of the workiorce's confidence in the Group's strategic direclion, optimism for the
future and career opporntunifies,

17
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting and Payment Praclices and Performance Reporting, both of
which cre published externdlly. The additional analysis required to conduct this reporting has highlighted some
areas in which the Group needs to improve. The Group wolcomes these changes as it seeks 1o constantly
inprove in ts engagement with all stakehokders,

3172(1) D “The Impuact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment™
The Direclors recogrise the impoance of ifs environmental responsibilities. More details can be found under
‘Environmental matters” onpage 13,

$172{1) E "the desirobility of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business cenduct”
IEH hess zera tolerance for modern slavery, bribery and other forms of comuption. wWe impiemenl and enfocce
effective systems 1o counter madem slavery, bribery and conuplion and have internal poicies in place to
educale our employees about how to recognise ond deal with these issues 50 as 10 ensure compliancs with
laws.

We rerngin committed to combatting modem stavery, bribery and comuption by:
- Auditing our supply chains;

- Training our siaft to recognise these issues;

- Monitoring potential risk across our business.

We hove a dedicated whistleblowing service for our employees 1o report misconduct or unethical practices
and have a policy which clearly sets out haow members of staff can raise any concerns which they may have.
Detaik of our code of conduct and modern slavery can be found on the ATG website;
htps./fwww,alg.co.ukfcorporagte-information

https.{/fwww.alg.co.uk/atg-modermn-savery-and-humon-rafiicking-stafemment

$172(1) F “The need to acl faidy as betwean membegrs of the company”
At every Board meeting the Directors review, wilh the monagement team, the progress against sirategic
priofities and the changing shape of the business porifolio.

This collaborative approach by the Board, together with the Boord's gpproval of the company sikategy, helps
it ta promote the long-term success of the Group. Board decisions are taken against the bockdrop of what it
considers to be in the best Interes! of the long-term financiol success of the company and its stakeholders,
including shoreholders, employass, the communily and environment, our suppliers and customers.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEX PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal decisions ~ engaging with stakehoiders

As part of the decision moking process for the Board, it continues to have regaord for the impact of its decisions
on the Group's stokeholders as required under section 172 of the Cormpanies Act 2006, The Board takes its
respornsibility towards stokeholders seriously and strives to build and maintain productive relationships with

each of them.
We outline hare how we engage with our stakehoiders to drive outcomes.
1. Employees

The Group's long-term success is predicated on the commitment and contibution of its workforce.
Engagement with our employees is essential 1o meat our shategic goals.

Ouring this veor, the Board nhas had to take the difficutt decision to furlough the majority of the Group's stoff
throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic. The usa of Govemyneant Job Retention Schemas in the UK and Germany
has dliowed the Group to avoid, reduce or mitigate redundancies which might otherwise have been required.

Resources have been made gvailabie fo empioyees to support their mental health and wellbeing during this
time. Ine Group has oiso implemented reguiar puise surveys, CEQ breaktasts and newsletters 1o ersure thot
employees remain engaged throughout this time.

2. Customers

Customers are centeal 1o the success of the Group and engagemant with our customers cliows the Group 1o
understand their requirements ond drive initiatives that seek to consistently improve the customer experience.

During the pariod in which the venues have been clasad. the Group has sought to we this tirma to plan for re-
opening of ow vanuas. In arder ta ensure that customers fee! canfident in retuming to our venues, the Group
has implemented reguiar customer surveys ta better undersiand what COVID-19 secure maasures customers
are expecling 1o see. The feedback from our customers has been invaluable in delermining our COVID-19
response.

Like many businesses, once COVID-12 resulted in the lockdown of owr venues, the Group had a large volume
of customer requests 1o manage. To gid our employees and provide better customer service, the Group
implemented a new customer service technoiogy solution and o second customer service catl cenire to

manage the infiux of customer queries in an efficient and timely manner.
3 Suppliers

Tha Group has g number of long-term supplier partnerships which are an important pant of our biusiness
including in relation to venue operations and H infrastructure,

Tha Group engages with its supply chain through a variety of methods including vio dedicoted relationship
managers, o central procurernent function and mest the buyer events. The Groug recognises the value of its
supply chain partners and the coliabarative approach the Group bas taken with its suppliers aliowed e
Group to respond proactively and prompily to the impact of COVID-19.

19
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

During 2020, as part of the initiatives to prasesve liquidity. the Group workaed with suppliers to adjust its supply
needs.

4. Conlent Poriners

Our content partners are key to delivering a successful custormer expeatience.  Throughout the COVYID-19
Pandemic it has been imperglive thal we engage with our content partners to ensure that there is o plan for
how we deal with the re-scheduling and cancellation of shiows in our venues. We have worked In conjunclion
with our parthers to ensure thal this has been undertaken in 9 manner which presesves the customer
relationship. The close working relationshin with our partners nas snabled us to plon for the re-opening of our
venues with a strong confent pipefine due lo the continued support from our content partners,

£, Communities and the Environment

The Group understands that il has on impact on communities and we engage with them in a number of
different ways ncluding: local culreach programmas, crective learning and community parinerships amongst
ofhers, As well a3 having a central creative ocutreach funclion, each of cur venues also has its own infliatives
for communily engagement, Due to our geographic spread geross the regions of the UK, North Americo and
Germany. the Group is ablg to respond to the specific needs and opportunities in each area.

We strive to reduce the environmental impact of our operations, and those of our supply chain partners,
throuwgh the responsible sourcing of resources. Key initiatives Include driving sustainable energy procurement,
instaling more energy efficient systems in aur venues wherever possible, and diverting all waste from tandfill,

&, Shareholders

The Group is in regular didlogue with its shareholders. The Group's shareholders are represented on the Board
and meet regularly throughout the year to discuss he key decisions o be made by the Group.

The ciose working relationship with the Group's shareholders has enabled the business 1o focus on key strategic
objectives which have been set by the Board ond focus onr long-term opporunities that maeet tha
requirements of the shareholders,

7. Bnancial [nshitulions

The Group reguiarly meeis with its banks, There is an annual presentation of the Group's performance, regular
interim reporling ong presentation of the Groug's budget. This has encbled the Group to torge strong relations
with its bankers and given them a betler understanding of the Group's business and its perfformance.

A good refationship with the Group's bankers has encbled the Group to negotiale d terparary adjustment
to certain financial covenants during the period when the Group's venues have had ta be closed due to the
COVID-19 reshictions.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (confinued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Pilncipol decisions made

We oulline here some of the principal decisions made by the Group and how the directors have considered
vanous stakeholders.

1. COvVIB-19 Measures

The final month (March] of FY20 was O peiiod of consideratole uncertainty for all businasses, including ours,
which warrgnted @ response to the unprecedentad impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. We recognised
quickly that there were likely to be significant implleations of this pandemic on surselves, s well as all other

location hased entertainment businesses, Our marketing services busingss wers also impacted as many of ils
clients are theatricol or location entertfainment businesses, fike museuns and galleries. By 17 March 2020, we
had closed all of our venues woildwide, in order to protect show casts and crew members, our employees
and visitors, Since then, we have diligently followed all government guidelines in each relevont geography.

In order to preserve liquidity and mitigate the impoct of the fixed cost base during fhe pandemic, the Directors
of the Group have taken the following measures:

- creoted o Business Continuity Committee, which has besn focused on crisis monagement and key
decision making:

- ongoing engagement with all our stakeholders, inciuding our sharehalders and lenders:

- implementation of bi-weekly cash flow forecasts 1o manage liquidity at a granular ievel throughout the
Groug;

- robust reopening scenaric modelling to drive decision making:
- proactive management of rescheduling shows ta future dates to minimize the level of show cancellations:

- asignificont element of the Group's cost base relates to wages and sciaries. Where possible. and subject
to locol reguiations, staffing levels and hours worked have been reduced. Employees, including senior
management and directors, have also undertaken salary sactifices, Govemment support both in the UK
in the faomm of the Job Retention Scheme and in Germany in the form of the Kuzarbeit progrom has been
ufllised to aifset stalfing cosls ihat coantinue 10 be incured:

- capital expenditure has been rephased and pricritized on essential maintendancs; ond

- actions have been taken 1o defer or permanently reduce payments of fixed costs and unpaid variable
costs from the pre-pandemic period, including agreements with Government fiscal authorities on certain
tax poyments.

2i
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Wwhilst 1he Board has made decisions to dsal with the immediate impact of the COVID-1% pandemic i has
also made these decisions with regards to the Group's loriger term sirategic objectives, For example, daspite
fimits on cash reserves and initiatives 10 preserve liquidity, the Group has confinued to invest in COVID-19
secure measures thal will need 1o be implemented lor re-ocpening our venues. invesiment in key strategic
initiotives such as IT and cyber security have continued.

2. Investment in digital capabilities to drive pre-show ond invenue F&B

As a customer focing business it is imporfont to continue to evoive 1o improve custemer experience. The
members of the Boord were satisfied that the development and roii-out of a new digital food ond beverage
sales charnel was an imporiant step for the Company to take to improve the user experience for owr
customers. The ability to order food and beveroge on-iine prior to and dufing your visit would reduce queves
in the venue and mitigate crowding, reducing the risk of COVID-17 infection.

3. Investment in building CAPEX

Despite our initiatives to preserve liquidity during the period when our venues have been closed, the Boord
has also considerad & prudent fo invest in our buildings where we can. Undercoking key repairs and
erhancements, whilsl our venues have been closed has enabled ws 10 ensure thal we do not have to
postpone or interrupt shows to carry out the works. A number ol these projects ensure thot we provide q better
expariance for our customers and content partners so that they remain safeguarded for the future,

4. investing in diversity and Inclusion

Despite our veres being ciosed. the Board has considered it key o confinua to focus on diversity and
Inclusion both on ond off the stage. Having taken inlo account previous work undertaken by the Diversity
Working Group, the Board has considered it important 1o expand upon the initiatives already undertaken.
Improving the divensity of voices within the Group will enhance the longer terrn success of the Group as o
whole,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Anthany Ball, Non-Execuiive Direclor

Anthony Bail served as Chairman of internotional Entertainment Holdings Limited from December 2014 to April
2021 and remains on the board as a non-executive director. He has been a senior advisor of Providence tquity
Partners since 2013, He has had g iong and successful carger in the meadia and entertainment indusiies in the
UK and intemationally, as chairman of Kabel Deutschiand from 2005 to 2013 and as CEQ of BSkyB, the largest
pay-Tv brogdcaster in Europe, Prior to this, he was the CEQ of the News Comporalion/Liberty Media joint
venture, Fox/liberty Networks, which included the FX Networks, Fox Sports Nel and over 20 regiongl sports
channels throughout the US. He B a nonrexecUtive director of BT Group ond chairman of Porland
Communications. Anthany received @ MBA from Kingston University and hos been awarded honorary

doctorates from both Middlesex University ond Kingston University.
Mark Cornell, Chiet Executive OMicer

Mark Comnell was appointed Group CEQ of the Ambassador Theatre Group In May 2014, Pricr 10 this he was
Managing Direcior of Sotheby’s Europe and preceding that, spent 10 years ol LYMH, including President and
Chief Executive Officer of Moel Hennessy USA and Chiet Executive Officer of Krug Champagne, Mark has
vast experence in managing lorge orgonisations, as well as successfully leading consumer-orientated brands
in the UK, Europe and the LUSA.

Stephen Evans, Non-Execuiive Direckor, Siiver Luke Partners

Stephen Evans joired Siver Lake in 2008 and i a Managing Director. Mr. Bvans serves on the board of
Ambassader Thedalre Group [ATG), Endeavor and TEG. He i@ a member of the audit commitlees of City
Footoall Group ana UFC. He olso previously served on the boards of Ancestry.com and Serena Software, Inc.
Prior to jaining Siver Lake, Mr. Evons was o Principol at Cognetas, g pan-European private equity firm, where
he focused on transactions across business and information services. Previously, Mr. Evons spent five years at
Bain & Company, based both in Europe and the U.S., including two years in &ain's privale equity group. He is
o member of the sxecutive boord of the EB Research Foundction. which is dedicated to finding a cure for
Epidermolysis Bullosa, @ rare children's diseasa. Mr, Evans holds on MA. ond an M.Phil from Combridge
Universily, and an M.8.A. from Horvord Business Schaol.

Davld Leigh, Non-Execulive Director

David Leigh joinad the International Entertainment Holdings Limited board os o non-executive director in
Qctober 2015, He is CEO of Alexander Mann Salulions, a role he hos held since Novernber 2019, Prior to
joining Alexander Monn, David was CEQ of Study Group, and prior fo that was CEC of SHL. Prier to SHL, he was
oh the Execulive Committee of Groupe Steria, with responsibility for Business Process Cuisourcing. David's
earlier background was in private equity (IFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Atlantic Partners and the Boston Consulting Group), consulting {McKinsey & Co} and law {Herbert Smith).
David has an MA In Sociol and Political Sciences from Cambridge University and o post-graduate legal

qudiification from the College of Law. London,
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Alexander Mishenin, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equily Partners

Alexcander Mishenin s a vice president based at Providence Equity Partners. Pricr to joining Providence in 2016,
Mr. Mishenin worked as an analysl in the nvestment banking group at LP. Morgan in London. Mr. Mishenin
received a Masters in Finance ond Law from Duisenberg Schoot of Finance and a Bachelor of Business
informncatics from the Higher School of Economics, Moscow.

Jonathan M. Neison, Executive Chaimaon, Providence Equity Fariners

M, Nelson was appeinted Chairman of Infermnational Entertainment Holdings Limited in April 2021, Mr. Neison
it execultive chairman and founder of Providence Equity Partners, the world's leading private equily fam
focused on media. comrmunications, education and informatian investments. The firm manages funds with
$45 vilion in commitments and has invested in more than 170 companies globally since s inception. Mr,
Nelion serves on the board of directors of Ambassador Theatre Group and The Chemin Group. He has also
sarved as g director of numerous other Providence portfolio companies, including Bresnan Communications,
Ercom pic, Hulv, Language Line, MotroNet (now ATAT Canada), MLS media, Univision, VoiceStream Wirsless
[now T-Mobile US), Wamer Music Group, Westem Wireless Corporation [now ATAT Comp.} and Yankees
Entertainment and Sports Network {YES).

Mr. Nelson has been a private equily investor for 38 years. He founded Providence in 1989,  Previously, he
was a managing director of Naragarset! Capliol, Inc. which be joined in 1983, Al Naragansett Capital, Mr.
Nelson specialzed in privale equily invesliments in media.  Mr, Nekon received a Master of Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School in 1983 and a Bachelor of Arts from Brown University In 1977.
He is a trustee of Brown University, The Rockefellar Universily and Institute for Advanced Study, He is a member
of the Board of Dean's Advisors of Harvard Busingss School.

John Oldcom, Chief Financlal Officer

John Cldcom was appointed as CFO of Intarnational Entertainment Holdings Limited on 1 July 202t. Prior to
this John spent three years os the Graup CFO of Argent Foods, a £750m tumover conglomerate of food-related
busingss, At Argent he oversaw relationships with lenders and other key stakeholders, played a key role in the
graup ravigating succassfully through the pandemic, and led four debt roises / refinancings, and significant
Corporate and M&A activity, Pricr to joining Argent In 2018, John spent 25 years warking in professional
practice with Arthur Andersen, Deloitte and, latterly, KPMG, the last 14 years as a pariner. He co-led the
crection and rapid growth of a dedicoted, multi-disciplinary, private equity practice serving gloleal PE clients
ond their portfalio companies across Europe, typically in a fasi-paced MAA environment.
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George Osborne, Non-Executive Director

Georgs Osborne joined tha board of 1BH as & non-gxecutive director in Apil 2021, He & o parinar af Robey
warshaw LLP. Prior to bis cument roles, George was an MFP for sixiesn years, the Chanceilor of the Excheqguer
(2010-2014) ond Flrst Secretary of State [2015-2014]. and edited the London Evening Standard from 20172020,
George is chalt of the not-forproflt Norther Powerhouse Partnershin and o Lecturer at Stanford University,
Cafifomia. In 2016 he was made a Comgpanion of Honour by Her Majesty the Queen.

Robert Svdo, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Porinens

Robert Sudo is @ managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is also a director of Bité, Closer 5till Medio,
H5E24, Masmovil and LaCentrale. Prior 1o joining Providence Equity Poriners in 2004, Robert worked os an
analyst for Goldman Sachs in mergers and acquisitiors and corparate finonce, He receivad a Diploma in
Business Administration friormm HHL Leipzig Graduate Schoal of Managemaent,

Andrew Yisdale, Non-Execylive Director, Providence Equity Portners

Andrew Tisdale 5 g Senior Managing Director angd Co-Head of Europe at Providence Equity Pariners. He s
also a Director of Chime Communication, Closer Skl Medio, HSE24, TES Global and Noded. Prior fo joining
Providence Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew wos global co-nead of the media and cormymunications group
and a member of Morgan Stanley's management committee for investiment banking. Andrew received a
Master of Business Adminisiration frormn the University of North Carglina of Chapel Hit and a Bachalor of Arts
from Vanderbilt University. He currently serves an the Space innovalion Council at the Calitomia Ingtitute of
Technology and. the Bocrd of Advisors for the Yale Schoo! of Drama, and Vonderbilt Univedsity's College of
Ars and Sciences.

Michail Vervisch, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Pariners

Michaél Vervisch is a managing director at Providence Equity Partners, He is clso a director of Noded. Mr
Vervisch otiginally joined Providence in 2014, in the post he worked @5 a principal ot Clayton Oubilier & Rice,
os an associate director at K Investment Partners and as an associate at MeKinsey & Company. Mr. Vervisch
received a Master of Business Administration from Harvard Busingss School and holds a Master of Science in
Electricat Engineearing and 4 Master of Science In Applied Egonomics from the Kalholieke Universiteit Leuven
in Beigium,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report and the audited financiol stalements for the period ended 27 March 2021,
The directors consider the annual report and Binancial statements lo comply substantially with all aspechts of
the "“Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity™.

DMRECTORS

The directors who served during the period and 1o ihe date of signing the financial statements {except os
noted) were;

Anthony Ball

Mark Comeil

Stephen Evans Appointed & Oclober 2020
Sinisa Krnic Resigned & Oclober 2320
David Leigh

Alexander Mishenin Appointed & October 2020

Jjonathan Nelson Appointed 27 Apri 2021
John Oldcomn Appointed 1 July 2021
George Qsborne Appointed 27 Aprt 2021
Robert Sudo

ShanMae Teo Resignad 1 July 2021
Ancrew Iisdale

nMichael Vervisch Appcinted & Oclober 2020

The biographies of the curent directors are presented on page 23 1o 25,

The Group is majority owned by Providence Equity Partners through its investment funds, Providence tquity
Parirers Vi-A LP and Providence VIl Global Holdings LP. Providerice Equity Pariners is @ giobal alternative
invastment fum established in 1989 focused on educotion, media, communications, ang information
wnvastments. The fimn's private equity platform specialises in sector-focused buyout fronsactions and growth
capital investments. Providence Equity Partners made its investment in the Group through (E Luxco S.é.rl.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company bas made gualifying third-party indempnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the period ond remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULIS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the perod after taxalian amounted 1o £135 0 million (2020, £25.9 rilion),

No dividends have been paid duing the curant period {2020 £N3), No dividends are proposed inrespect to
the current period.
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GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the date of approvai of these financial statements, the impact of COVID-19 on the Group's trading
continues to be assessed and is subject 1o rapidly chonging extemat factors, including evoling government
responses 1o control the spread of the vinys and ongoing changes in cusiomear senfiment Jowards attending
live entertainment events.

Due to the measures lagken by govemments wordwide to control the COVID-19 outbreck, the live
entertainment industry come o @ slundstilt from the second half of March 2020, with ol our venues beaing

closed for opearations.

Prior o mid-March 2020, the Group had fraded well with a programming scheduls of highly successful shows
supporting sirong operational performance across off of its teritories. We were in g strong financial position
with all covenants under the terms of our loans being met. Unfortunately, the closure of our venues has resulted
in a sharg drop in tumover. Qur marketing servicas businesses are alsa experiencing a drop in turmover as many
of our custamers are in the e enterntainment and cultural & haritage sectors [museums, galleries, zoos); all of
which have had restictions on their operalions during COVID-15. Whilst there has been a corrosponding
reduction in variable cos_rs ot a resull of the ciosure of our venues, the Group continues to have to fund its
fixed cost base,

In order to presarve liquidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pandemic, the Directors
of the Group have taken 0 number of measuras as set oul on page 21 of this report.

The Group has nef cument iabilities of £63.4 milion [2020: £168.7 milion] and net assets of £61.1 milfion [2020:
£42.0 milion} ct the period-end date. Net current ifabilities include advanced ticket sales of £113.8 milllon
(2020: £142.4 milion). These represent ticket sales for shows that have yet to maiure, with a portion of this
omount due to flow Yo the Group. Excluding advance ticket sales and nonsefundabie grants, 1he Group has
liabilties due within cne year of £144.2 milicn (2020; £187.0 milionj which are exceeded by cument assels of
£227.7 million, {2020: £206.5 million}.

The Group hoids cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts. in its bank accounts of £182.7 million as
at the reporting date. in addition, the Group has received an equity commitment from ils shareholders, which
is presently undrawn,

The Group operates and rabust, bi-weekly cash and cash flow farecasting process covering the pericd to 31
December 2022.

Sensitivities are nun ta raflect different scenarios for when thaatres might or will be able fo re-open inthe months
following the dote of the approval of these financial statements. This is done to Identify risks to liquidity and
covenont complionce and enable management to tormulate appropricte and timely mitigation strategies.

These sensitivitias include severe, but plausible, downside scenarios.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Based on these forecasts and other factors which may impacl the Group's future liquidity pasition, the
Cirectors hove concluded that it is appropficte 1o prepore the fnancial statements on a galng concem basis,

Tre redsons for this are as folows:

~-  The Group holds £433.0 milion of committed facilities which are subject fo net laverage and quidity
covenants. There is a reduced risk of default an the net leverage cavenant, due 1o o facility amendment
which allows for an adjustment to the net leverage covenani whilst theatres are closed by gavernments
due to COVID-19 and during an agreed ramp up period post re-apening. The Group is also sublject to
minimum lguldily covenant which is forecast 1o ba met for the next 12 months; and

- Adequate liquidily is in place for the next 12 moniths based on the foraseeabie scenarios for theatres, in
terms of re-opening dates, polenfial resfictions on how our venwes can op&iate [i.e. social distancing
requirements], and the level of demand from audienges, At present, govemment palicy on recpening of
theatrical venues and social distancing requirements vares acrgss the countries and regions that the

Group operates in.

The Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, its abiity to manage s kiquidily requirements, confidence in
the continued support of our shareholders, and the long term potential of the business forms the basis of our

preparation of the financial statements on a gaing concern basis.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (confinved)

MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certain matters {post balance sheet events, future developments, principal risks and uncerlainlies and
employee matters) are discussed within the Sirategic Report and incoporated into the DirecClors’ Report by

reference.
AUDITOR
Bach of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:

- 10 for as the director s aware, thers is no relevant qudit information of which the Compony's auditor is

unaware; ard

- the director has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken as a director in order to moke
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and o establish that the Company's auditor is

aware of that information.

This confimation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 2008,

Deloitte LLP have expressed their wilingness ta continue in office as auditor and a reselution 1o reappoeint them
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annudal General Meeting.

This report wos approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and signed on s
behaif:

N

John Qldcorn

Director

Regisiered ofiice
28 5t George Street, London
W13 2FA, United Kingdom
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The diractors are rasponsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financioi statements in accordance
with appficable low and reguiations,

Company law requires the directors (o prepare financial statements for each finoncial peried, Under that law
the directars hove elected fo prepare the financial statements in accordance with Internafional financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopled by the BEoropean Union, Under company law the dikectors must not
approve the financial staternents unless they are satisfied that they glve & frue and fair view of the state of
affcirs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, intemational Accounting Stondard | requires that director:

- propery select and opply accounting policies;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, relioble,
comparable and understiandoble information;

- provide additional disclosures when complicnce with the specific requirements in IFRSs are nsulicient
to enabie users to ynderstand the impact of particular fransactions, ather events and condlfions on
the entity’s financial pesifion and financial perfarmance; ond

- make an gssessment of the Company's abliity 1o continue G5 O going concern.

The directors are responsibla for keeping adequate occounfing records that are sufficient to shiow and explain
the Company's fransactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any fima the financiol pasition of the
Company and enable them to enswre that the financial stataments comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They are clso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and henca for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of froud and ofher irregularities.

The drectors are responsible tor the maintenoncg and integrity of the comporate and financial information
included on the Company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom goveming the preporation and
dissemination of finoncial statements may ciiffer from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

We confimm that to the best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework,
give a e and fair view of tha assels, iabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Campany
and the undeniakings inciuded in the consolidation taken as a whale;
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- e Strategie Report Includas G fair review of the development and performance of the business and
the paosition of the Company and the vundertakings included in the consolidation taken as o whole,
together with a descaption of the prncipal risks ond uncertainties that thoy foce; and

- the annual report and finoncial statements, taken as o whole, are fair, balonced and understandabie
and provide the informatian necessary for sharehclders to assess the Group's performance. business
madel and strategy.

This respansibility staternent was opproved by the Board of Directors on 21 july 2021 and is signed on ils behaif

Slllo— |

John Oldeormn
Diracior
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the oud! of the finonclal statements

Opinion

In':}ur apinion the financial statements of Intermational Entertainment Holdings Limited {the “parent company'}

and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’):

» give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's offairs os at 27 moreh
2021 and of the group’s ioss tor the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accorgance with infemational accounting sfandards in conformify with
the requiremants of the Companies Act 2004; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

we have audited the finongial statements which comgxise:

« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

« the consoliidated and company statements of financicl position;
+ the comsolidated and company statements of changes in equity:
» the consolidated statement of cashfiows; and

+ therelated notes 1 to 33,

The finoncial reporting framework that has been gpplied in their preparation is opplicable law and
intermational accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinlon
Wea conducted our gudit in gecordance with Infemational Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs {UK)} ond

applicable law. Our rasponsibiities under those standards are further described in the aquditor's responsitilities
for the audit of the financiol statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and 1he parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the
'FRC's') Ethicol Stondard, and we have fulliled owr other ethical responsibilifies in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for aur opinion,

Conclusions 1elating to going cencemn

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ Use of the golng ¢concern bas's of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements s appropriate.

Qur evaivation of the direciors’ assessment of the group’s and parenf company's alifify to continue to adopt
the going concem basis of accounting included:
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» an assessment of he entities (inancing faciities including nature of faciities, repayment terms ond
covenants;

+« o review of managermen!'s forecasts, including challenging management's key assumptions such ¢ the
reopening dates of theatres. the occupancy levels, the base level of operating costs, the cash flow to
achieve re-opening, and the refund rate on advonced sates;

+  an gssessment ovar the amount of headroom in the forecasts {cash and covenants) on abase case and
under managemsnt's sensitivity anclysis of an extended dark period or o reduction in cccupancy rates;
and

' review over the modei used to prepare the forecasts, testing of clerical accuracy of those forecasts and
our assessment of the historical accuracy of foracasts prepared by management.

Based on the work we have perfarmed, we have not identified any material uncertainties reiating 1o events
or condifions thal, individuclly or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent
company's ability e continue as a golng concem for a peried of at least twelve months from when the
financicl statements are authorised for Issus.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilitias of the directon with respec! to going concem are described in the
relevant sactions of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the Information included in the annual report, other than the Fnancicl
staterments and our auditor's report thereon, The directors are responsibie for the other infarmation contained
within the annual report. Our opinion an the financiaf statements does not cover the other information and,
except 1o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assuraonce
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to reod the other information and. in deoing sa, consider whather the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obldined in the course of the audi, or
otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated. If we identify such malerial ing onsistencies or apparent material
misstaternants, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a moterial misstatement in the financiol
statements themselves. ¥, based on the work we have perfoormed, we conclude thal there is a materiol
misstatemnent of this other information, we are required {o report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regord.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Responsibiiffies of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' resporsibilities statemert. the directors are respaonsible for the
preparation of the finonciol statements and for being safisfied tha! they give a true and Fair view, ond for such
internal control as the directors delermine is necessary to enobie the preparation of financial statements that
are free from matesicl misstatement, whether due to froud or error.

In preparing the financial stoternents, the direclors ore responsitle for assessing the group's and the parent
company's ability to continue as o going concemn, disclosing. as applicable, matters retated 1o going concem
and using the going Concern basis of accounting unlass the dirgctons either intend to liquidate the group or
the parent company oF to ceass operations, or have no reafistic altermative but to do 5o,

Audiior's responsibilities for the qudit of the financlal statements

Qur objectives cre fo obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
fres from maoteriol misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditors report that includes
ouwr opimion. Redsonoble assurance is Q high level of assurance, but s not @ guorantee thot an audit
conducled in accordance with 18As {UK] will atways detect o malerial risstalemertt when it exishs,
Misstatements can arise from fraud ar eror and are considerad material i, individudlly or in the aggregata.
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further descrintion of our responsibilities for the audit of the financiol siatemenis is locoted on the FRC's
website at www fre.org.uk fauditorrg sponsiilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit wos consldered capabile of detecling iregulorities, including ravd

Imegularities, inciuding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with lows and requlationz. We detign
procedures in line with our resporsibilities, cutlined above. to detect materiol misstatements in respect of
#regularifies, including fraud. The exfent to which owr procedures are capable of defecting iregularities,
including froud is detailed below,

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its contral environment, and raviewed the group's
documentation of their poficies and procedures relating 1o fraud and compliance with [aws and regulaficns.
We also enqguired of management about theilr own identification and assessmeni of the risks of iregularities,

We obiained an understanding of the legal and regulatory fromework that the group operates in, and
identified the key laws and reguiations that:
= had q direct effect on the delermination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Companies Act, iFRS, CIRS ond tax legislation; and
» donot have o direct effect on the iinanciol statements but compliance with which may be fundomentot
to the group’s abilily ta operate or to aveid a malerial pendity:
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iINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

We discussed among the audit angagement team. ncluding significant component audit teams ond refevant
internal speciafists such as tax, and valugtions specialists regording the opportunities and incentives that may
exist within the organisation for froud and how and where fravd might occur in the financiol stofements,

As aresult of performing the cbove, we identified the greatest potential for fraud or non-compliance with o
and reguialions in the foliowing oreas, and our specific procedures perfarmed to address them are described
below:

=« Judgement and estimglion, which give dse to ihe risk of fraud gre required in the prepoaration of
discounted cash flow ['DCF'] models wsad to determine whelher there is an impoirment of goodwill and
other assets. The same DCF gre applied to support the carying value of the Group's venues. The fraud
risk arises with the estimates made over the future trading assumptions, specifically the assurned date of
venues fe-opening and the discount rote opplied. We have challenged management’s assumptlions and
considered both suppaorting or contrachctory avidence whikt alsc engaging specialist input into the audit
of the discount rate In each region. We have oo considered the appropriateness of the sensitivities
performed by management and the disclosures thereof.

» The Group has utilised a number of Covid-19 related govemment support schemes. The noture, eligibifity
and complexity of the schemes varles behweeon territories. We identified a fraud risk in relation o the
Group's applications under these schemes given the complexity and reduced time period in which the
schemes were established, spechcally pinpeointed to the Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany.
The risk is that amaounts claimed by the Group could be intentionally, or umirdentionally, misstated which
could lead to repayments, fines and reputctional damoge. We have considered the design and
implementation of the controls management instigated to ensure the accuracy of applicotions and
recording of assistance recaived, With the involvement of our specialist leam we have inspected source
documentation ond, for a sample of claims recalcutated amounts clgimed and reced payments to the
HMRC cloims portal and the bank receipt of funds ensuring consistency with amounts recorded in the
financial statements. We have also reviewed the disclosures made in respect of government gssistance.

in common with all audits under 15As [UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures fo respond to
the risk of management overide, in addressing the risk of froud through management override of controls, we
tested the appropriatenass of joumol entries and other adjustments; assessed whather the judgements made
in making accounting astimates ore indicative of a potential bigs: and evaluated the business rationale of
any significant fransactions that are unusual or outside the nomal course of business,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

in addition ta the above, our procedures to respond 1o the fisks identified included the following:

-

reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing 1o supporting documentation to assess complonce
with provisions of relevant laws and reguiations described as having o direct effect on the financial

statements;

performing analytical procedures to identify any unusud) or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstaternent due to fraud:
enquiing of management conceming actual and potential litigation and cldims, and instances of non-

complionce with lows and regulations; and

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govermnance and reviewing corraspondence with
HMRC.

Report on other iega! and regulaiory requirements

Qpinions on othar motters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

In owr opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the oudit:

the infammation given in the strategic report and the direciors’ report for the finoncial year for which the
financial statemenits are prepared is consistent with the finoncial staotements; and

the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with opplicable legol
raquirsments,

n e ght of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
environment abloined in the counse of The audit, we have no! identified ony material misstatements in the

strategic report or the directors' report,

Malters on which we are required to repert by exceplion

Under the Companies Act 2006 we cre requimed to repart in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion;

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches nol visited by us: or

the parerd company financial statements are not in agreament with the accounting records and returms:
or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made: or

we have not received al the information and explanations we reguire for our qudit.

We have nothing to réport nrespect of these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {(continued)

Use of our report
This repart is made solely 1o the company’s members, as a body, in cccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Acl 20046. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’'s
rmembers those matters we ore required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the tuliest exient permitted by kw, we do nol accept or assume responsiblity to anyone ofher than the
company and the campany’s mambers as a bady, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

LT e
Healen Wildman ACA [Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalt of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

London
United Kingdom

21 July 2021
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Note 52 week patiod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Revenue 3 41.641 476,747
Cost of soles [19,208) 1189,248)
Gross profit 22,433 287,499
Administrative expenses (118.793) {284,575)
Share of resulls of associates and ioinl venlures 1 (245} (702)
Opercating [loss] /profit 4 {94,609} 2,222
Finance income 7 1,546 1,344
Finonce costs 8 [54.072) {37,473
Loss before tax {147,135 {33,907}
Taxation 9 8,183 7.982
Loss for the period {138,952} {25,925)
Attributable tor
Ovwnats of the Compaony {138,252} (25,925]
Comprehensive Income
Lass for tne period (138,952) (25,925}
tterns that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on fransiation of foreign (492} 5,195
operations
ftemns tha! will not be reclassified subsequentiy fo
profit or loss;
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 274 241
cbligotions
Tolal comprehensive loss For the period {139.170] {20,48%)
Atributcble fo:
Owners of the Company [132.170} (20,489)
Tota! comprehensive loss for the period {139,170} {20,489)

Al activity relafes o continuing operations.

There are no matenial differences between the losses far the pefiods disclosed above ond their historical cost

equivalents. The accompanying notes form part of ond are to be read in conjunction with these financicl

statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Company
27 March 28 March 27 March 28 March
20 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000

nvestments 10,33 24178 4,356 413,835 262,578
nterests in associaies and joint ventures 11,33 3,528 1.519 . -
Goadwil 12 362,884 372,730 - -
intangible assets 12 18.60% 18328 -
Propedty, plont and equipment 13 89.47%9 430,905 - -
Deferred tax cssets 22 17.316 11,567 -
Non-curent frade and other receivables 16 22,431 23318 - -
Non-cunent assets 816,425 840,723 413,835 262,575
Inventaries 14 505 t,044 - -
Investments in shows 15 2,393 3734 -
Trade and other receivables 14 39,380 62,554 - -
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 17 185,432 1390465 144 -
Cuyrrent asseis 227 .6%0 206,457 H4é -
Total assets 1.044,115 1067180 413,981 262,575
Trade and other payables 18 189,571 260814 11,044 i0.900
Borrowings 13 69,370 69,370 - -
Obligations under finance laases 0 16,393 12,474 - -
Provisions 21 15.801 25,483 - -
Cumrenl iablities 291,135 375143 11,044 10,900
Net current labilities {63.445) (168,687) (10.900) (10,900)
Borowings 19 514,037 456,670 - -
Cbiligations under fincmce leases 20 149,673 157.706 - -
Delerred kax fiabilities 22 26.198 28,699 - -
Nen-cumrrent flablittles 691,928 &43.075 - -
Totol Habilitles 983,063 1,018218 11,044 10,900
Net assets 41,052 48,942 402,935 251,475
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Compuny
27 Morch 2021 28 March 2020 27 Maich 2021 28 March 202G
£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Share copital 23 414 262 414 242
Share premium account 402,522 25).414 402,521 251.413
Transiation resesve 26,99t 27,483 . .
Accumulated deficit {348,873 {230,197} - -
Tolad eguity aftributable to 41.052 48,362 402,935 251,675

awners of the Company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion contained within saction 408 of Ihe Componies Act
2004 not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive ncome and related notas. The result for the vear
dealt with it the financial statermients of the Company was Enit [2020: £nl).

The finoncial statements of were appraved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 21 July 2021,
They were signed on its behaif by:

Sl

John Qldcom
Registered Number 08749976
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

for the 52

week

period
ended 27 Forihe 52 week
March period ended 28
20 March 2020
£000 £000
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 24 {108.52¢) 62,235
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {10.389) {40,923)
Purchases of intangible assets {4,343} {13.144)

Net recouprent from shows o 1.401 1.855
Net cash used Ininvesting aclivitles £13,351) 152.212)

Naw shareholder loans raised 135,000 49,370
Proceeds from share issue 151,260 -
Repayments of bank borowings {85.500} -
Repayment of oblgations under finonce leases (11,074} {18,028}
intarest received 1.544 22
Interest poid 120,996} {22,917)
Nal cash gengrated by financing achvities 170,216 28,447
Net increase In cash and cash equivalenfs 458,33¢% 38,470
Cash and ¢ash eguivaients ot beginning of pericd 139.045 98,956
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 48339 38,470
Foreign exchange {loss)/gain on cash A L ] 1,639
Cash and cash equivalents af end of period 17 185,432 139.045

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial skatements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

General intormalon

infernational Entertairnent Holdings Limited (the "Group”) is 0 private Company limited by shares,
incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and is registered in Engiand and Wales. The
address of tha registered office is 28 §t. George Streat, London, W15 2FA, United Kingdom.

The principal activities of the Company and ifs subsidiaries (the Group} and the nature of the Group's

operations are set out in in the strategic report on pages ! to 22,

These financial stalements are presented in pounds steting because that s the curency of the primary

econornic environment in which the group operates.
Adoption of new and revised standards

Amendments ta IFRSs thal are mandoiorily elfeclive for the current period

In the cumrent year, the Groug has applied amendments to FRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB] that are mandaterily effective for an accounting period that begins on or ofter 1

Janudry 2020,
The adeption of these omendments in the year did not have a material impact on the fnancial statements.
New and revised IFRSs In Issue but not yet eflective:

Allhe gate ¢f authorisation of these financial statermeants the Group has not appiied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet elfective:

- Amendments to 1AS 1 - Clossification of liabilities as cument or Non-current

- Amandments 1o IAS 3 - Reference to the Conceptuat Fromework

- Amendments to 1AS 8 - Definition of Accovnting Eslimates

- Amendments to |AS 12 - Defered Tax related 10 Assets and Liabilities

- Amendment: to IAS 16 - Properly, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds betore intended use
- Arnendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulfiling a contract

- Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations

- IFRS 16— COVIC-i% Related Rent concessions

- IFRS 17 - Insurance conbracts

- Annual improvemenis to IFRS standards 2018 — 2020 (IFRS |, IFRS 7, RS 14, IAS 41)

The Directors are curenily evatuating the impact of the adoption of these standards, amendments and
interpretations but de not expect them to have a material impact on the Group operaticn of resufts
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiicant accounting policies

Bosis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepured in accordance with Intemationd Fingnciol Reporting
Standards {IFRSs). The financlat statements bave also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by
the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS
Regulation,

The Company has taken advantoge of the exemplion contdined within section 408 of the Companies Act
2004 not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes. The profit for the year
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was £nmil {2020: £nil).

The financial statements have béen prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values al the end of sach reporting period. as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cast s generally based on the fair value of the consideration givenin exchange for goods
and services,

Fair valve s the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants ot the measurement dote, regardless of whether thal price s
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. [n estimating the (oir vatue of an Qsset
or a liability, the Group takes into account the characleristics of the asset or liabifity ¥ morket participonts
would take those characteristics inlo account whan pricing the asset or liability at the megsurement doie.
Fair value for measurament andfor disclosurs purposes in these consolidated finoncial statemsnts is
detarmined on such a basis, except for share-based payment fronsactions that are within the scope oF IFRS
2, legsing tronsactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similaritios 1o
fair value but are net fair value, such as net reaclisable value in |AS 2 of value in use in 1AS 34,

Qperating results

The operating results inciude transactions up to and including the Saturday on or preceding 31 March of
eqach period.

Qoiis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stotements incorparate the financial statements of the Company and entilies
controled by the Company (ils subsidianies}. Confrol is achieved when the Company has the power over
the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investes ond has the
abiity o use its power to affect its retums.

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the pariod are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive iIncome krom the daole the Company goins control until the date when the
Company ceases to conlrol the subsidiary,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounting policies (continued)

Basls of consolidation (confinued)

Al intfragroup ossats and liabilities, equity, incoms, expenses and cash flows relaling to transactions
betweaen the members of the Group are eliminated on consalidation,

Non-controlling interests in subsiciaries are identified separately from the Group's equity thersin. Those
intarests of non-conirolling shareholders that are present ownarship interests are intially measured at the
non-contraliing interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net ossets.
Subsequent to acquisition, the camying amount of nan-confroling interests is the amount of those miterests
ot inltial recognition plus the non-controlling interesis” share of subsequent changes in equity.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries gre accounted for using the acguisition methed. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or joss as

incurred.

Goodwill is measwed as the excess of the sum of the consideration transfered. the amount of any non-
conieolling interest in the acauiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity inferest in the
acquire {if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assurmed,

Contingent consideration 5 meaured ot s acquisition-date foir volue and included as part of the
corsiderotion fransferred in a business combination, Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration
that quality os measurement period odjustments are adiusted relrospectively, with comesponding
adpstments against goodwill. Measurement period adiustments are adiusiments that arise from additional
information obtained dwing ¢ maximum period which cannot exceed one yeaor from the ocquisition data
about lacts and circumstances that existed at the acquisilion date, Where changes occwr to contingent
consideralion that is classified as on asset o liabiity. thal do not quality as measurement period adjustments,
the contingent considerafion is remeasured ot subsequent reporting dates with the comresponding gain or
ioss being recognised in profit or loss. To the extent that the lemns of contingent consideration arangements
inciude service conditions, consideration is reated os a cost of employment and s recognised over the

period to which the service conditions relate,
The Group reports provisional amounts until the measurerment period is completed.
Investmants

investrmants in subsidiaries are valued at cast less provision for impairment,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant uccounting policles [continved)

Assoclates ond joint arrangements

An ossociate is an entity over which e Group has significant influence and that is neither o subsidiary nor
an Inlerest in a [oind venture, Significont influence is the power to participate in the finoncial and operaling
policy dacisions of the investes but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint arangement is an anangermnent of which two or more parties have jont control. Joint conlrol is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities |i.e. activities that significantty gffect the retums of the arrangament) reguire the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing conlol. Joint arangements are classified nto two typss - joint operations ond
joint ventures.

A joint operation b a joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement [ia,
joint operators] have rights fo the assets, ond obligations for the abilities, relating 1o the arangement. A joint
veriture is a joinl arangement whereby the parties that have jeint control of the arongement (i.e. joint
ventures] have rights to the nel assets of the amangement. The type of joint arangement is assessed by
considsiing its rights and oblgations, by considering the structure and legal form of the anrangement, the
contractual tlerms ogreed jo by the porties to the arangement and, when relevand, other tacts and
creumstances.

The assets ond kqbiiities (ond related revenues and expeanses] of joint oparations are recognised in proportion
1o the interast in the arrangemenl.

The resulls and assels and liabilities of associotes ond joint ventures are incaporaled in thase finoncial
staterments using the equily method of accounting. Under the eguity method, an investment in an gssociale
is iniliclly recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Positich af cast and adiusted thereatfter to
recognise the Group®s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that assaciate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substonce, form part of the Group's net investment in the associalel, the
Group disconfinues recogrising its share of further losses. Addilional losses are recognised only to the extont
that the Group has incured legai or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortised but s reviewed for impaiment at least armually.

For the purpose of impaiment testing, goodwill is allocated to sach of the Group's cash-generating units
(CGUs) expeacted to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units 1o which goodwill
has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may e impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit B less than its camyng
omount, the impaimnent loss k allocated first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwil aliacated 1o the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the bosis of the canrying amount of each asset in the
unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwil is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policlas {continved)

Goodwill {continved)

Prior to the cument year the Group 's two German subsidianies. BB and Mehr. were treated as separate CGUs.
This policy has been changed to recognise BB and Mehr as one combined Maintand Europe CGU, dligning
the CGUs to the management's divisional view of the Group's aclivities.

impoirment of nen-current assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carying amountds of its tangibie and intangible assets
to determing whether there is any indication that those ossets have suffered an impairment loss. Goodwill is
reviewed for impairment at ledst annuclly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, gocawill is dllocated, atl acquisition, 1o the cash generating units or
graup of units that org expacied to benefit rom that business combination,

An impairment loss is recognised if the camying amount of the asset under consideralion exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable omount is the higher of fair volue less costs of disposal and value in use.
in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value wsing o
discount rate thal reflects Cutrant morket assessments of the timea value of money and the risks speacific ta
the asset.

It the recovernable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
imnpaiment loss is aiocated first 1o reduce the camying amaount of any goodwill and then o the ofher assets
of ihe unit prorata on the basis of the camying amount of each assel in the unit, An impoirment loss
recognised for gocodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Investments in shows and co-preduciion arangements

Investrments in shows are siated at cost less amounts recouped to date, and provisions for any amounts

which the directors do not believe are recoverable.

Production arangements are reviewed on a production-by-production basis and treated based on the

principles cutlined chove as either a subsidiary, an associate or joint venfure or joint argngement,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles {continved)

froperty, plant and equipment

Property, plont and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and accumulaled impairments.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to wiite off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated resicual
valus, on a siraight-ine basi over their expected useful ives as fallows:

Fresehold buildings 40 to 50U years
Leasahold property Shorter of leasehold term and useful life of 40 to 50 vears
Fixtures and fittings 4 to 10 years, or over the period to the end of the lease of the thealre

iF this s shorter
IT Equipmenl 3to Syears

No depreciafion B gpplied to the cost of assets in the course of construction. Freehold land is not
depreciated.

Intangible assels

Intangibte assets all have finite kves and are caried at cost less ocoumukasted amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. aAmortisation is recognised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated

useful lives and is recognised in the administrative expenses line item.

The amortisation pericd for software is 4 years. The estimated §fe of other intongible assets is considered on
an asset-by-asset basis and is up to 10 yeors.

Inventory

inventory is vaived at the lower of cost and net reclisable value after making due allowance for chsolete
and slow-maving itemns.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posifion
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are initially measured
ot kair value. Transaction costs that are directly attibutable to the acquisition or issue of financicol assets and
financial linbilties, other than financial assets and financlal liabilities at fair volue trrough profit or loss
[“FVTPL"}, are added to, or deducted from. the fair value of the financial assets or financidl liabilities on initicl
recagnition. Transaction costs directly attibutable to the acquisition of financial assats or financial liokilities
at fair value through profit or loss cre recegnised immediately in profit o loss.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLOINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles [confinued)

Financial instruments {continved]
Cuash ond cosh edquivaents

Cash and cash equivaients comprise cash balonces, call deposils ond escrow-type accounts. Bank
aoverdrafts that are repayable on demand and Form an integroi part of the Group's cash management are
inciuded as ¢ cormponent of cash and cash equivatents for the purpose of the Statement of cash flows.

Trade receivables ond accrued income

Trode receivobles ong occrued income are classified os loans and receivables ond are meoswred ot
omortised cost using the effective inferest method, less any impairment. Since rade receivables and
accnred income are typically due within one year, ond the effect of any effective interest is immaterial, this
equates to initial canying volue less any impaiment.

Barrowings

Loons ond Borrowings are infliolly measured at fair value nel of transaction costs. They ore subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an
ellective vield basis. The effective interest rate is a method of caiculating the omortised cost of a financid
liablity and ot allocated interast expanse over the relevant period. The alfective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected iife oF the Inoncial llabiltly, or.
where apprapriate, a shoster periad 1o the net camying amaunt on initial recognition.

Trade payables and gocryals

Trade payables and accruals are dassified as loans and receivables and are measured af amortised cost
wsing the effaclive interast method. Since trade payables and accruals are typically due within one year,
and the effective aof any effective interest is mnmaoterial, this equates to initial carying value,

Financial guarantees
Financial guarcntes confracts ore accounted for as insurance contracts.
Deferred income

Amounts recaived by the Group for services performed in fulure are classiiied as defermed income ond
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income when the service & performed.

Relirement benefits

Payments to defined contibiution refirerment benefit schemes are recognised os an experse when
smployees have rendered searvice entiting them to the contributions, Differences between contibutions
payable in the period and contributions actuglly poid ore shown Q¢ either acaruals or prepayments in
tha balonce sheet.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 2/ MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (conlinved)

Revenue

Revenue is recognised ol the falr value of the corsideration received or receivable and represents
amovunts receivable for goads and services provided in the nommal course of busness, rist of discounts,
VAT and other sales-related taxes, Revenue for the Group compiises several efements, inciuding:

Venue rentol and produchion-refated services

Charges to productions inrespect of services provided {such as venue rentat and staffing} are recognised
net of sales taxes as thosea services are provided.

Revenue kom production-relaled services is recagnised of the dote of performance of the show, until
which time it is held on the Statement of Finanaial Position as Deferred Incomea.,

Fromotional services

The Group acts as pramaoter for sell-produced shows and shows produced by third parlies. Revenue from
these services is recognised ot lair value of consideration received, net of sales taxes, at the date that the
promolional services are provided,

Marketing services
Ravenue from the provision of markating services i recaognised ot the fair value of the consideration

received of receivable. The fair vaiue of corsideration takes inte account frade discounts, settlament
discounts and volume rebates. Marketing services revenue Is recognised net of soles toxes over the peried
that services are provided, or as recoverable costs are incured, in accordonce with the lenms of the
contractual agreement. When recorded markeling services reverue exceeds the amounts invoiced o
clenl, the excess is classified s accrued incorne.,

Ticket soles

Revenue from ticket sales represants the revenue eomed from cormmissions, credit card charges and
similar charges. This revenue is recognised gt the dale the ticket & sold.

Revenue from ticket sales where the Group is acling @3 seling agent fwhether for its own theatres or for
other UK venues] includes booking fees, commissions, and similar additional income charged at the point
of sale. These omounts are recognised net of any sales taxes of the fronsaction date. Such revenue &
recogrised as an agent rather than principd transaction, ond so excludes the foce value of the tickels
sold.

Reldi sales

Revenue from concession sales 1o cusiomers at the Group's venues is recognised net of sales taxes af the
point of sale,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinved}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant acceunting palicies (¢ontirued)

Revenve (continved)

Other revenue

The Group provides various other services on anad hoc basis, all of which are refated to its principal activity.
Reolkated revenue s recogrnised at {air vaiua over the perod that such services are perarmed and the
pedormance obligations are met,

Joint operations

in relation 1o co-production arangements, where o confroling ar joint opsration interest is helq, revenue
inciudes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no controlfing interast is held tumover
raprasents net ncome from productians. Where equily accounting 8 opplied. the share of profit or loss
disclosed in the “share of results of associates and joint venturas™ lina.

Govemnment granls

Income from government grants & recogriised as deferred income ond released to the Cansolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income @s the attached conditions are salisfied. Where the grant relates to
procurement of an assel, the amount received is released to the Corsolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the useful life of the asse? ogainst associcted deprecialion.

A malenal gont related to assets is presenied in the statement of financlal posifion as a deduction from
the camying vaiue of the related asset, with aconsequent reduction in the arnual cherge for depreciation,

COVID-1? relatad jobs ratention schamaes are considered within the scope of IAS 20, with furlough receipts
recorded as a reduction in payroll expensas.

IFRS 14 legses

The Group recognises ¢ right-of-yse asset and a lease iabiity at the leass commencement date. The right-
of-use assat i§ initially measured at cost, which compiises the initial amount of the lease liabiity adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any inifial direct costs incured.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-ine method from the commencement
date, The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use dssets ore determined on the same basis as those of
property, plant and equipment.

The lease iability [s initially medsured ot the present value of ihe lease payments that ore not paid at the
cammencement date, discounted using the Group's incremental horrowing rate. The liability is sulbsequently
adjusted for any re-measurernent of the lease kability resulfing rom reassessmenits or lease madifications.

The Group presents right-of.use astels in ‘property, plant and sguiprment” and lese liabifities in *finance
leases' in the statement of financial position.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant occounting policles (continued]

Short-term leases and leases of low-value asseis

The Group has elected not to recognise naht-of-use assets and lease liabllities for short-lerm leases of 12
months or 1ess and leases of low-value assels. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with
these legses as an expense on a skkaight-iine bass over tha lease term,

foreign cumencies

For the purpose of the consolidaled financial stalements, the results and financidl position of each Group
Company are expressed in pounds steding, which i the functional curency of the Company, and the
prasenfational curency for the consolidatad financiol statements,

Manetary assets ond liabilittes denominated in foreign curencies care ransicted into sterling ot rates
of exchonge ruling ot the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign curencies are transiated into stering
at the rote niing on the date of the fransaction, Such exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Foreign exchange gains or losses onloans that are effectively invesiment instuments, such os where o
parent Company makes ¢ loon with no repayment terms to o subsidiary holding Company as port of
acquisition consideration, ore recognised in other comprghensive income.

Rasulls of overseas subsidiaries are fransiated at average monthly rotes. Assets and liabilities of overseas
subssidiaries are transtated at the rate ruling at the balance sheet date. Such exchange differences arsing
ore recognised in the transiafion reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Operating proft

Operating profit is stated after the share of rasults of assaciates but before finance income and caosts, other
gains and losses and taxes.

finance income

Finance income i recognised in profit or lass in the period in which it is eamed.
Finance cosls

Finance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pefiad in which they ore incured.
Cther gains ond losses

Other gains and losses are recognised in profit or toss in the period in which they are incured.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policies (conlinued)

Pre-Production related casts

Expenses incurred piior o a production going live which are directly othibulable to the production of the
show ore categernised into sither properly plant and equipment ond depreciated over the assumed useful
life of the show, ar ‘Ofher non-tangible assetls’, which are released to the Profit and Loss over the shiow's
usefyl iife based ypoh the ratio of the curent period’s revenues to the estimated total revenues {Total
Production Revenrue} for each production. Where estimates of Total Production Revenue decreqases.
amortizafion of pre-production costs may be accaleroted. Conversely, if estimates of Tolat Production
Revenues were to increase then amartiation of cosls moy be stowead,

Taxation
The tax expreanse represents the sum of the tax cumently payable ond defered tax.

Current ond cefermed tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relats to itams that are
recognised in other comprehansive income or directly in equity, in which cose the current ond deferred tox
are glso recognised In other comprehensive income or direciy in equity respectively. Where cument tax or
detemred tax afses rom the initial accaunting for a busingss combination, the tox effect is included in the
accounting tor the business combincation,

Current tax is based on laxable profit for the period calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Detened tax is recognised on temporary differences between the corying omounts of assefs ond fobiities
in the consolidated financial stgtements and the corasponding tox bates used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabiities are genercdlly recognised for all taxable temporary difterences.
Deferred fax gssets are generally recognised for oll deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable prefits will be avallkable against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utiised.

Such defered tax assets and licbififies are not recognised if the femporaiy ditference arises from the itial
recognition of goodwill, from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)] of assets and
lrabilities in a transaction that atfects neither the taxabie profit nor the accounting profit or investments in
subsidiaries and ossociates, and inlerests in joint ventwres, where the Group is able to control tha reversal of
the tempcrary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesabie
future, The amount of defered tax provided s based on the expected manner of reglisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and Robilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted ot the
fincncial period end date. A deferred tax assat is recognised only to the exient that it is probable that future
faxabtle profits will be avallable against which the osset can be utilised.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1.  Significant accounting policies (confinued)

Provislons

Frovisiohs are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as o result of a
post event, it & probable that the Group will be required to setile that obligation and a reliable eslimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

2 Critical accounting judgements and key sowces of estimation vncertainty

In the application of the Group®s accounting polficies. which are described in note 1, the Dirgctors are
recuirad to moka judgements, estimales and assumplions about the carrying amounls of assets and
fiabilities that are not readily apparert from olher sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual resulls may differ from these estimates.

The sstimates and underlying ossumplions are reviewed on an ongoeing basis. Revisions to accounting
astimales are recogrised in the pehod in which e eslimate is revised If the revislon affects only that period,
or in the peniod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future perods.

Judgemenls
Going concern basls

in order to assess whether it is appropriate for the Group to be reported as a going concem, the Directors
are required to make judgements regarding the Group's future trading performance, cash generation and
ability to satisty its financial obligations. Having undertaken appropriate enquiries and having considered
Ihe business activilies and the Group's principal risks ond uncertainties, the Directors concluded that the
accounts should be prepared on a going concem basks. Please refer to the Directors’ Report for our delailed
assessment of this matter.

Key sources of esfimation uncertainty

Carying value of non-current assels

impairment

The Group assesses the carying values of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assels annualiy.
Recoverabiity is dependent upon assumptions and estimates regarding market conditions, fulure cash

fiows and discountrates. known as at the 27 March 2021. A material change in astumplions may signific ahiy
impact the potential impairment of these assets.

An extersion fo the daork period of 4 months would not generate an impairment to any of the cash
generating units {CGUs) but reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122% of asset values of the UK, US,
Germany ond Markeling Services CGUs respectively. Further delail can be found in note 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinved)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3. Reverwe

The Group's revenue from extemal customers by classification is detailed below:

§2 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020

£000 £000
venue Rental and Production Related Services 10,489 230,058
Promationdl & Markefing Services 18.898 115,478
Ticket and Retaqit $ales 5,456 119,547
Gihae 4,798 11,654
Total revenue 41,641 476,747

The Group's revenue (rom external customers by geogrophical location is detailed below:

§2 week period 52 week periog
ended 27 March ended 28 March

202 2020

£000 £000
United Kingdom 21,091 213,847
Rest of Europe 10,949 123,473
North America 6,657 129,441
Asia 2.944 ?.984
Totol tevenuve 41,64} 476,747
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {conlinued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Operdling (loss)/proiit

Net loss for the period has been arived at after charging/ (crediting):

52 week 52 week pesiod
peoriod ended ended 28
27 March Maorch 2020

20

£000 £000
Depreciction of properly, plunt and equipment 13 26,615 21,439
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets -buildings 13 8,801 8.759
Amortisation of intangible fixed assels 12 1.988 1.974
Impairment of property, plont and equipment 13 - 7,154
Impairment of intangible assels 12 - 7776
smpairment of fong tarm debtor - 8,967
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 2814 -
Loss on disposai of intangible assets 12 122 -
Inventory write downs 4 194 -
Cperating lease charges 7018 215
Staff costs é 38.487 137.810
Finance income 7 [1.548} [1.344)
Finance costs 8 47,682 30,926
Interest expense on [FRS 15 lease liabiiitles 8 6.390 8.547

8. Auditor's remuneration

The analysis of the ayditar's remuneration is as follows:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March encied 28
2021 March 2020

£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and thelr assaciates for the oudit ok

Tha consolidaled and parent financial stalemenis 4463 418
The subsidiory financial statements 50 65
Tolal audit fees 513 433
Taxation compliance services - 71
Taxalion advisory sarvices - 10
Todal non-audit fees - 81
Total 513 564
58
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contfinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

é. Staff cosls

The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors] was:

S2 week perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2001 2020
Directors 5 5
Venue staft 3178 4349
Other 1.105 1,524
Total monthly average number of employees 4284 5,880

Tha averoge number of individuals with an employment contract in place during the period is
4.698. Of this population. the tolal monthly average number of employees paid through the
payredl during the period is set gut in the toble above.

Thelr aggregate remunavation comprisad: £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 34 125.666
Social security costs 5702 9.703
Other pansion costs 1.644 2,441
Total aggregate remuneration 3 487 137,810

Current year staff cosls are presented net of income from government support schemes tolafliing £41.3
million {2020: £xil).

Oirectors disclosed here are only those employed by the Group, so exclude board members employed by
the Group's sharehoiders.,

Tha average monthly number of employees of the Company was five, being the executive directors
(2020: five].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contfinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

& Slalf costs {Continuad)

Remuneiation of direclors and key management personnel
The remuneration of the drectors and key management personnet of the Group s set out below:

52 weak perled 52 week period
anded 27 March anded 28 March

2021 2020
£000 £000
Remunerafion of directors;
Saiaries, fees, bonuses, and benefils in kind 1.045 1,501
Money purchase pension contribulions 11 20
Totol remuneration of directors 1.056 1,523
Remuneration of direciors and key managemeni personnel:
Remuneration 2474 3.687
Social sacurty contribulions e 513
Pension 56 &0
Total remuneration of directors and key management 2,879 4,250

personnel

Key management parsonnel are those who have significant influence over the opergtional running of the
business. During the period, refirement benefils were accruing to two [2020: two) directors in raspect of
defined contribution schemaes,

The highest paid director received remuneration of £575000 (20200 £935,000). The vaiue of the
Company's confribulions paid to a defined contibulion pension scheme in respect of that individual
amounted to £4,000 {2020: £10.000).

During the period, drectors and key management personnel received fold compensation for koss of office
lotalling £1.157,000 (2020: £nil}, an which social security of £143,000 (2020: £ni) was pcid by the Group.

Fensions

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in on independently odministered fund, The pension cost charge represents
confriibutions payabie by the Group o the fund and omounted 1o £1.444000 {2020: £2,441,000].
Contibutions tolaliing £629.000 [2020: £340,000) were payable to the fund at the balance sheel daote.

Employee benefit invst

The Group has na direct employee share scheme or share-based payment arongement. However, certain
employees of the Group have acquired an inferest in the equity of the holding Company via an employee
benefil frust in both the curent and pricr periods,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

7. Finance income

52 week 52 week period

period ended

ended 28

27 March 2021 Morch 2020

£'000 £000
interest income 1,546 1,324
Unwinding ¢f discount on long termm receivables and - 20
payablas
Finance Income 1.544 1,344
3. Finance cosks
52 week petlod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March
20 2020
£00¢ £000
Interest on loans fromn parent underdakings 1,090 1.841
interast on bank averdrafts and loans 25,582 22,084
Interest on obligotions under finorce leases 4,595 4957
Interest expense on IFRS 14 lease liabilities 6390 4,547
Amortisation of financing fees 2,597 3,780
Forelgn exchange loss/{gaing 13418 [1.23&}
Finance cosis 54,072 37,473

61

$ensitivity: Intermal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

?.  Taxafion

Analysis of lax credit in the period

52 week 52 wask pericd

period ended ended 28
27 March tarch 2020
201

Cumrent fax £'000 £000
lax jcreait} f charge on loss for the period (734 49
Prior year tax adjusiment (1.333) {4.570)
Foreign tax in the period - G47
Total current tax (1,504} (3,172

Deferrad tax 22
Defemed tax credit current vogar (18.097) {8.333)
Change in tax rate - 2,740
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 11,419 743
Total dafesred fax [4.677) (4.810)
Tax on loss (68.183) {7.982)

UK corporation tax is calculated at 19% {2020 19%} of the estimated taxable profit for the period. Taxation
for ofher jurisclictions is colcuiated at the rates prevailing in 1he respective juisdictions,

There is Nil income tax impact 12020: NA) for items within other comprehensive income,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

?. Taxation {confinued)

The credit for the period can be reconciled to the Consclidated Statement of Comprahensive Income o

folows:
52 week perlod 52 week pericd
ended 28 endead 30 March
March 2021 2020
£'000 £000
Loss before tax [147,135] [33,907)
Loss multiplied by standard rote of corporation tox in the UK of

19% (2020 19%] {27 .254) {6.442)

Eftects of:
Exgrenses nol dechuctible for tax puposes [141) 3,564
Adiustments to tox charge in respect of prior periods 10,087 {3.807)
Non-qudiifying depreciation 728 -
Eftect of different rate for deferred tax - 2,750
Effect of overseas tax rates {2,483 {3.402)
Thegalre tax credit N3 [#35)
Change ih unrecognised defersd tax assets 11,970 -
Effect of foreign exchange {15) -
Other reconciling differences L ) - 230
Tax credit tor the peried {8.183) {7.942)

The closing UK defamed tox iiabiiity as at 27 Morch 2021 has been calcuiated ¢t 19% reflecting the tax rate
at which the defemred tax liability is expected to become payable.

Anincrease in the UK corporation tax rate to 25%. effective kom | Apiil 2023, was announced in Firance Bill
2021 which received royal assent on 10 June 202! becoming Finance Bill 2021, This rate had not been
substantively enacted at the balonce sheet date and therefore is nol reflected in the tax calculations for
the year ended 27 March 2021. The impact of the rate change from 19% to 25% would be to increase the
deferred tax kabilily as ot 27 March 2021 from £10,883,000 to £14.320.000.

Deferred tax higbiities have not been recognised in respect of losses in overseas subsidiaries as it is not
probable that future toxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utlised,

Deferred tax assets on carried forward unutilised losses in Australia of £2,392,000 (2020: £2,097,000). Germany
of £29,575000 {2020: £10519,000 recognised] and the US of £30,903,000 {2020: £ni} have not been
recognised.

There are carried forward unutiised tax losses in the UK of £87,382,000 {2020: £351.000). A deferred tax asset
of £14,536.000 (X12C: £ni)) has bieen racognised as it is expected that these losses will be utilised within the
next hwo years,

&3

Sensitivity: internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

10. Investments

The directly and indirectly held subsidiaries are lisled in note 33.

Group As ot 52waek As at 52week
period ended  period ended
27 Morch 2021 28 March 202D
£000 EDOO

Cost and nel book value
Listed investments - |
Unlisted investments 2178 4,355
Invesimenis 2178 4,354
Company As ot 52 week As ot 52 week
peviod ended pericd ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

Cost ond net book value
Subsidiary investments 413,835 262,575
invesiments 413,835 242 875

The Group's unisted investments relate ta its investment in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, @
company incorparated in the United Stales of Americt of which the Group owns 1.08%.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. lterasts in associabes and joint ventures - Group

As of 52 week As af 52 week
pericd ended  peniod ended
27 March 2021 28 Maorch 2020

£'000 £000
interasts in joint venhyes 2.8 515
nterests in associates 597 1.004
Inferests in associates and Joint ventures 34528 1,519

Joint venitures

The Group has interests in several inclividually immaoleriol joint ventures which take the form of both
produclions and businesses. Each investment is shructured as a separate vehicle and the Group has a
residual interest in the net assets of the investiment. Accordingly, the Group hos clossified its interests as joint
ventures. For some of the productions, the Group & enfified 1o fess thon 50% of the production earnings
however the production agreement requires unanimous consent in decision muaking resulting i joint control,

the following companies have g year-end dute different to the Group's aacounting francial veor end of
27 March 2021

. HPF West End: 31 October 2021
J8 UK Tour I: 31 December 2021
Train Times SF LF: 3t December 2021
Train Times Broadway LP: 31 December 2021

This is as a resull ol the entities not falling under IEHL hence yaar end dotes moy need 1o suit the reguirements
of ait shareholders.

For the purposes of applying the equity method of actounting. the financial statements of HP West End (for
the year ended 31 October 2020, and 4B UK Tour I, Train Time SF LP, Train Times Broadway LP (for the yaar
ended 3t December 2020) have been used.

The joint ventures are not restricted in their ability to transfer funds 1o the Group in the formn of cash dividends,
or 1o repay loans or advances by the entity.

The following table onalyses, in cggregate, the camying amount and share of total comprahensive mcome
aof these Joimt Venlures.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Interests In associates and joint venlures - Group {continued)

Canying amount of inferests In joint ventures

As ot 52 week
period ended
27 March 2021

£'000
24831

As af 52 week
period endad
28 March 2020

£000
515

Share of total compeehensive Income

{249}

(702)

Associotes

Carrying amount of interests in assaciates

As ot 52 week
peoricd ended
27 March 2021

£'000
£97

As at 52 week
penod endod
28 March 2020

£000
1,004

Share of tolal comprehensive income
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1Z. intangible qassets - Group

Tatal
Assels under Other - intangible
Software  construction Intangibles Assely  Goodwil Tatal
£'000 £'000 £000 £a00 £'000 £'000

Cost
Al 30 March 2019 16,219 - 6,498 23,417 J75954 399.3N
Additions 2,929 3,292 7,447 13,668 - 13,548
Transfers 3,722 {d.222) . - - -
Exchange differences 3 - 442 455 4,565 §.030
At 28 March 2020 23,073 70 14.407 37,550 380.51% 418,067
Additions 1,451 2,852 ity 4,243 1,434 5.7%8
Dispesals {1.084) - (3.86%) {4,753) - {4.953)
Exchange differences {58) - {7 58) (a14) {11.427} {12,443)
Al 27 March 202} 23382 2,942 9,800 34144 370.326 404,470
Accumulated amottisation and impairment
At 30 March 2019 8.245 - 3,207 11,472 7.479 18,953
Charge forfhe 52 week period 1.54) - 433 1.974 - 1,974
Impairment - - 1,774 1775 - 7.776
Exchange differences - - - - 3o 3¢
At 28 March 2020 9,804 - 11,414 21,222 7,789 2901
Charge for the 52 week period 1.917 - 71 1988 1.988
Digposcils (1,003) - {3,828} (4,831) - (4.831)
Exchange differences {47} - 1797} {84d) (347} {1.1%1)
Al 27 March 2021 10,673 - 4,842 17.535 7.442 M.577
Corrying amount
Al 28 March 2021 12,709 2,942 2938 18,509 342,884 381,493
Al 28 March 2020 13,247 70 Eﬂl 16,328 372,730 38%.058

The amount of expenditures recognised in the canying amount of assets under construction is £2.% milfion

{2020 £3.3 million}.

Qther intongible assets relate to show rights costs and pre-production related costs.
The Company has no Intangible assets (202G Enil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intongible assels - Group {continved)

Goodwill acguired n o business combination is allccaled, at acquisition. to the cash genorating units
(CGUs) or group of units that are expected to benefit iom that business combination. The carying omount
of goodwil has been allocated to the foliowing CGLs:

At 27 Moch

20

£000

United Kingdom 249,834
UsSA &0,074
rAginiand Europe w217
Marketing services 13.757
Total goodwfl 362,884

The Group tests goodwill and Intangible assets annually for impaimnent, or more frequantly if there are
indications that goodwill might be impaired. Property, plant and equipment is also tested for impairment if
there are indicators of impairment, which there have been in the curent and prior yeoar, The recoverable
amounts of the CTGls and the group of units are detemined rom value in use calculations.

The impainment reviews for United Kingdom, USA, Mainland Europe and mMarketing Services do not indicate
any impairment against goodwill, other intangibles or property, plant and equipment.

The key assurmplions and resuiting attibutes of the impoiment review are as follows:

Unfled Mainlond Marketing
£Ms Kingdom Usa Evrope Services
Goodwil 249.8 601 39.2 13.8
PPE / Other intangibles 247 8 948 440 8.7
Tolal ossels 4976 154.9 852 22.5
WACC assumption 10.4% 11.0% 10.0% 10.4%
GOP growth 2.0% 20% 2.5% 2.0%
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLOINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intangible assets - Group {cantinued)

The values for the key assumptions were omived at by taking into consideration historical information and
comparing to external sources where appropriate, such as market rates tor discount factors. GDP growth
rates are used as the termingt value growth rate in calculating the net present values of the respective

CGUs, white the inflation rates are applied as the base growth factor for years 2 10 4,

Budgeated cash flows - the caiculation of value in use hos been based on the cash Rows forecast in the

Group's latest five year pian.

The five year plan ossumes that COVID-19 confinues 1o disrupt the Group through FY22, with varying re-
opening dates ocross our temitories staring from October 2021. The Group's cash flows are foracast toreturn
1o pre-COVID-1% levels in FY23.

The following sersitivities were applied o the impaimment test

Sensitivity 1 - dark perlod: A plausitle extension to the dark period of 6 months would not generate an
impdimment tc any of the cash generating units {CGUs) but reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122%
of assat values of the UK, US, Mainlond Europs and Marketing Services CGUs respectively.

Sensitivity 2 - discount rate: A tive percentage points increase in the discount rate would create an
impairment to the UL CGU and reduce headroom to 34%, 143% and 51% of asset values of the US, Mainland
Europe and Marketing Services CGUs respectively.

The increase in discount rate required to create an impaiment to each CGU s UK 1%: US 8%: Mainland
Europe 21%; and Marketing Services 105,

This sensitivity was Giso tested at @ venue level, A five parcentage points increase in the discount rate

would create impaiments to four UK venues, one US venue and one Mainland Europe venue.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

13. Property, plant and equipment —~ Group

Right tong-term Short-lerm Fixtures
Freehold ofUse leosehold leasehold  Assets under and
properly Asset properly property  consiruction ;Engs Tolal
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 30 March 2019 163.606 - 140,483 22,367 7702 74137 408,500
Additions 8221 - 10,223 592 8,553 14,145 43,73%
IFRS 16 - Right-of-use: asset - 875 - - - - 87.5%0
Transters - - - - (10.257) 10.257 -
_Exchange differences $02 3,594 2581 _{370) {53] [210) d444
At 28 March 2020 172,729 91,184 153.4%7 22,589 5945 100.32% 544,273
Additions 2,258 - 240 25 6,445 1.400 10,338
Disposats (204] [255) {119} 1783) - {25975) (27.3%4)
Transler 43 - - . {8.8748] 8813 -
Exchange differences {1,448] (5809)  {7.841} - (28] (2.403) (17.527)
At 27 March 2021 173398 85120 45777 2130 3505 82184  5ILT96
Accumulated depreciation ond impalmment
At 30 March 2019 16,836 - 26,740 4,347 - 27,114 77037
Charge for the 52 week pericd 3,429 8,759 5,053 598 - 12,359 30,174
impairment - - - - - 7.154 7.154
Exchange differences - - 684 - - 295 b 24 d
Al 28 March 2029 20,245 8,757 32,477 4% 000 . 48,922 115,348
Chorge for the 52 week period 4,514 8,801 5334 483 - 14,284 I5Ns
Disposals (194} - [¢1) {770) - [23.465) [24,520)
Exchange differences {275} [479] {1.453] - - [1.540)  (av47)
At 27 March 2021 26,310 17.081 34,047 4,658 - 38,201 122,217
Carmying amount
At 28 March 2021 147,088 48,039 109,710 17,173 3.506 43983  8%.47?
At 28 March 2020 152444 82425 121,020 17, k44 5,945 £1,407 430,905

The amourt of expenditures recognised in the camying amount of assets under construction is £6.5 milllton

{2020: £3.6 million).

The Company has no property, plont and equipment {2020: Enil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. [nvenfories - Grovp

As gt §2 As at 52 week
waek perlod period ended
ended 27 28 Morch 2020

March 2021
£'000 £000
Finished goods at cost 662 1.395
inventory provision {157) {351}
Finlshed goods and gaods lor resale 505 1.044

The Group wrote off £194,000 of inventory during the year (2520: £nilf.

The Company has no inventory {2020 £mid).

15, invesfments In shows - Group

As ol 52 waek A3 O 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £030
Investments In shows 23733 3.794

Investments in shows reflect the Group’'s investment in productions in which it does not have o contraling
interest.

The Company has no investments in shows (2020: £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Trade and other receivables — Group

As ot 52 week  As ot 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Notes receivable 9856 10,946
Other non-cuvent receivables 12,775 12,352
Amounts receivable afte: more than 12 months 22,433 23,318

The notes receivable bolonce comprises amounts receivable from counterparties in relation to the
financing structure of the redevelopment of The Hudson Thealre via a wellused urrangement created by
the US government to encourage financial instifutions to invest into redevelopment of historic buildings.
interesl is receivobie of rates bebween 0.48% and 0.5%. These will be recoverable fram the counterparties
either over the Wife of the inslrument or by transfer of leasehold interests. The long-term receivable reiates to
a balance acauired as part of the ACE acquisition and [s a fee for theatre development sevices provided
which will be paid over © number of years.

As ot 52 week As at 52 week
period ended  perind ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Tracle receivables 14,989 29,385
Prepayments and accrued income &,611 11,619
Coiporation tax receivoble 4,747 5037
VAT recelvatde 3,982 -
Other receivables 2.031 16,513
Amounts recelvable wihin 12 months 39,360 §2,554

Other receivables include a related party balance of £3.7 million due from the Group's parent company,
IE Luxco S.ox.l (Luxembourg) (2020: £3.7 milion].

The Company had no frade ond other receivables {2020: £nil).

Allimpaired trade recsivables have been provided to the extent they ore believed not 1o be recoverable.
The maximum exposure to cradit risk at the reporting dote is the fair value of each class of receivable. The
Group does not hold any colloteral as security, Assels which are neither past due nor impaired ore
comsidered fully recoverable.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

16. Trade and other receivables - Group (confinued)

Anatysis of frade receivable ageing

Credit nsk management

Cradil fisk refers to the risk ihat a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in finoncial
loss to the Group. As of 28 March 2020, some of the Group's frade receivables were due andfor past due
bul not impaired. Thase ralate to a number of independent custormers with no matenial concentration within
any one customer and no custorners who ara of parficulary high risk of default, The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables & as follows:

As ot 52 week  As af 52 week

period ended 27  period ended
March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £X0
up to 3 months 4.68% 17,338
A to dmonlhs 234 2529
Qver 6 months 10,720 10,314
Total 15,623 32,583

As of 27 March 2021, the Group also held past due trade receivables which had been provided for

As at §2 week As ot 52 week
perfod ended period endad
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Up to 3 months 123 2078
3 to 4 months 130 217
Over & months 38! 203
Total 434 3,198

Under IFRS 2, the Group is required 1o utilise ohjective evidence as well as consider forward tooking
information, such o5 the economic conditions in the countries whera the Group operates, and the
probability of default when calculating expected credit losses. The maturity of financial ossets is therefore

used as an indicator as to the probability of defauit.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

17. Cash and cash equivalents — Group

As ol 52 week As at 52 week

period ended pericd ended 28

27 March 2021 March 2020

£000 £000

Cash and cash equivaients haid in own accounts 182,872 130,214
Cash and cash eqguivalents held in escrow 2,560 8,549
Cash and cash equivalents 185,432 139,065

The Company has £146,000 of cosh and cash eguivalents {2020 £nil].

18. Trode and other payables - Group

As of 52 week As at 52 week
period endoed  period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

20N

£'000 £000
Trode payables 26,434 37,155
Deferad income 113,802 142,356
Accruals 35,684 58,476
Cther taxation ond social secunrity 2,007 4915
Tax creditor 1,981 2,104
Other payables B, 736 15014
Govemmenl granls recaived and not utilised 923 796
Trade and other payables due within 12 months 189,571 260816

The Company has an intercompany payable of £11.0 milion [2020: £10.9 milion} which is repayable on

demond, no interest is charged.

The other payables balance includes payroll creditors and amounts due to produchion companies.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

19. Borrowings - Group

As ot 52 week Asat 52 week
pericd ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

201

£'000 £000
Bank loans - senior debt 358,000 358,000
Bank loans - revolving credit facility 49,370 £9.370
Tolal senlor debt 427 370 427,370
Farr vaiue adjustment / unamortised financing fees 16,858 14,281
8onk loans - other - 84,409
Shareholder loans 139179 -
Bomrowings 583,407 526,040
Amount duya for settlement within 12 months £2.370 &2.370
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 514,037 456,670
Boarrowings £83 407 524,040

The bank loans - seror debl, are secured by a charge over the assels of intemational Entertdinment
Finonce Umiled, o subsiclicry of the Company and the maojority of its subsidiary undertakings. These loans
bedar interest at a rate which fluctuates in fine with LIBOR with o margin ranging between 4.25% ond 4.75%
and are governed by a senior finance agreement with requisite covenants.

The Group alio has loans from its shareholders totalling £13%.2m, including accrued interest (2020; £NIl],
Interest is non-cash poying and accrues ¢f fixed roles ranging between 4.0% and 10.0%.

As at 52 week A5 at 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Barnk lkeans - senior debt 427.370 427,370
Bork loans - other . 84,409
Sharehoider loans 139,179 -
Fair value adjusiment 18,641 18.66)
Unamortised financing fees (1.803) (4.400)
Bomowings 583,407 526,040

The Company does not have any borrowings (2020: £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obligations under finance leases - Group

Asol 52 As ot 52week
week period perod ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
March 2021
£000 £000
Amount due within 12 months
finance leases 421 4,270
IFRS 14 leases 12,182 15,204
Ohllgallom vndes lease licbilities 16,393 19,474
Asot 52 As at 52week
waek pericd pericd ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
March 2021
£'000 ET00
Amount due after 12 monlhs
Finance leqses 86,554 86,429
IFRS 14 leases 63,137 71077
Obligaifons under lsuse Babliithes 149,493 157,704
Finance leases - Group
Minimum lease payments Present valve of minimum lease
payments
27 March 2021 28 March 2020 27 March 261 28 March 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Within one yeor 4,329 4,284 4,211 4,270
n the second to fifth years 17,753 17,578 15,124 14,985
inclusive
Atter five years 400,673 405,639 73984 73,476
422,755 427,503 23311 92731
Less: future finonce chotges [327.444) {334,439)
23,31 23.064 3311 12,73
Unamortised finance costs {2,544) {2.145) {2.544) {2,145}
Prasant value of lecse 10,747 90,899 90,747 90,548
obligations
Amount due within 12 months 4,211 4,270
Amount due after 12 months 86,556 86,629
. 787 90,897

The Group leases certain pmperties under finance lease arangements. The average lease fermis 75 yeors.

The Group does not have the opfion ta purchase the properties for o nominal value at the end of the lease

terms, and the Group's ebligations under the finance ieases are secured over the propertios being leased.

Interast rates undedying all obligations under finance leases are Impilicit rates ranging from 5.3% 10 5.8%

(2020: 5.3% to 5.8%].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20, Obfigallons under finance leases - Group {continved)

IFRS 14 lease Habiities - Group

As of §2 week Asat 52week
perod ended patiod ended
27 March 2021 238 March

2020
£'000 £000
Current 12,182 15.204
Non-current 83,137 71077
IFRS 14 lease Rabilky 75.31¢ 84,281

The weighted average incremental bomowing rate applied to measure lease Yabilities is 7.92%.

As of 52 week

period ended 27

March 2021

Maturity anatysis £000
No later than 1 year 12,182
Later thon | year and not later than 5 years 29,958
Laler than 5 years 32179
wmhe

the Group does not face o significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease iabiities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function. Overall the variable payments constitute up to 5% of the
Group's entire lecse payments, The group expects this ratio to remain constant in future years. The variable
payments depend on ficket sales and consequentiy on the overall economic development over the next

faw years. The total cash outfiow for leases amounted to £13,.6r (2020; £13.6my,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

21. Provisions - Group

Acquisiion- Dllapidations Refunds and Other Total

telated Tickefing

provislons Provision
Group £000 £'000 £000 £'000 E£000
At 30 Moarch 2019 11,341 433 - 712 12.4B&
Additions - 2,611 11,241 - 13882
Utilised/freleased (1.055) - - - {1.055)
At 28 March 2020 10,284 3,244 1,241 712 25483
Additions - 226 arz 1,142 3,889
Forgign exchange adjustments (451} 20 - - {724)
Ulilised/freleased - - {10.804] (190} {12777}
Al 27 March 2021 9,835 3,490 812 1,444 15801

Acquisition-related provisions relate to earn ocut agreements in respect of the acquisitions of Mahrl Group.
The consideration is payable dependent on success factor criteria over the naxt two years.

Dilapidations relate 1o the expected tevel of dilopidations mainly related to central offices. The adequacy
of the provisions is periodically reviewed 1o ensure that they wil meet the final obligations.

The Company has ne provisions [2020: £nil}.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

22. Deferred fax - Gioug

Revalvallon Accelergled Acquistion Tax losses Other iming Tolaf

of propearty tox intangibles ditarences

depraciation

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 30 March 2019 24 457 {654) 2,199 (2.442) {1,618} 21,942
Charge/{credit) to profit or loss 2114 52 {73} 912} 15.993) {4.810)
At 28 March 2020 26,573 (602) 2126 (2,354} {7.611}) 17,132
Charge/{credit) 1o profit or loss {654] 842 {87} {13,182 6.832 (6.249)
At 27 March 2021 25.91% 240 2,039 {16.538) (779) 10.883
27 March 28 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Defarred fox iabilitias 28,198 28,499
Defarred tox assets {17,315) {11,567}
Net defened tax Busbliily 10,883 17,132

Recogrisad deferred tax assets are expected to be realised by prefils generated in future years in each
relevart temitory.

The Company has no delerred tox (2620 £nilp.

23. Share copltal - Group and Company

Number of £1 Nominal
Ordinary shares value
£000

Authaorised, Issued and fullty paid:
At 30 March 201 9 and 28 March 2020 262,147 262
Net proceeds of shares issued 151,260 152
At 27 March 2021 413,427 414

On 14 QOctober 2020 an additional 85.500 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with a nominal value
of £1 eqch for ¢ tota! consideration of £84k.

On 25 March 2021 an additional 5,761 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with g nominal vaiue
of £1 each for & total consideration of £65k.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continved)

FOR THE §2 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24, Notes ta the cash flow stalemen!

Net cash generated by opeating aclivitles

For the 52 week For the 52

peilod ended  week period

27 March 2021 ended 28

March 2020

£'000 £000

Operating {Yoss}/profit [94.60%) 2222
Impairment of assets - 14,930
Amartisation of intangivle fixed assels 1,988 1,974
Depreciction of property, piant and equipment 26.615 21,439
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets - builkiings 8.801 8759
Share of results of assoclates and joint ventures {24%] {702)
{Decrease}/increase in provisions i9.682) 2.959
Operating cash flows before movements in working capitat {67.138) 58.581
Decreqgse/[increase} in inventories 53¢ {125)
Decrease inreceivables 24,08) 1815
{Decrease) fincrease in payables {68,147) 8,944
Cash flow rom operating aclivities {110,663) 69,237
Corporate tax received/(paid) 2137 {7.002)
Net cash flow from operating activities {108,524) 62,235
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24. Notes te cash llow siatement {continued)

Met debt reconclialion
As at 52 week As at 52 week
petlod ended 27 pericd ended 28
March 2021 March 2020
£'000 £000
Bonk tocns - senior debt {358,000) {358,000)
Bank oans - revolving credit faciity [69,370) ($%.370)
Total senlor debt (427.370) (427.370)
Fair value adjustment/ unamertised financing [146858] (14.251)
fees
Bark 1oans - other - {54,409)
Shareholder logns (139179} -
Obligations under finance leases (148,084} {177.180)
Tobldal dabt (749,493} (703.220)
Cosh ond cash egquivalents 185,432 129,045
Net debt {564,081) (554,155)
Movement In net debt
Cash at bank Debt Total

Net debt as af 28 March 2020
Cash flows

Foreign exchange adjustments
Cther non-cash movement

£'000
139,065
48,339
{LY72

£000 £'000
(703.220) (544,155)
(38.406]  9.933
- {1,¥72)

\7.867)  (7.867)

Nat debt as ot 27 March 2021

185,432

{749,493 (564,061)
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

25. Contingent iakilitles

A coporate cross guaraniee of the senior debt exists between the Company and the majonty of its
subsidiory undertakings. The senior debt is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the
Group. The Group dlso hess in place various guarantees across its portiolio, which are typical of commercia!
and property rental agreements,

24. Contingent assets

At the balance sheet date the Group had applied to the German govemment for COVID-12 related grant
income, At that date management deemed it prabable that the applicalion would be successiul, with
expeacted future income of €10.8 milion.

27. Commilments

Caphital commiiments

At the balonce sheet dale, the Group had material contractual commitments for capital expenditure of
Endl {2020 £nil).

23. Financial risk management

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to maximise shareholder value whilst safaguarding the
Group's ability to confinue as a going concermn. In common with other privale equlty portfalio companies,
the Group canies g high level of net debt compored to equity. Total capilal is calculated as total equity os
shown in the consolidated statement of position, plus net bank debl. Net bark debt i colculated s the
totat of long and short term bomrowings as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less
cash and cash equivalents.

Financlal risk monagement objectives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. including currency risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management prograomme focuses on minimising potential adverse effects on the
Group's financlal performance.

Descriptions of the financial nsks and how these are managed and mifigated are included in the Strategic
Report onpages 11 and 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

28. Fingneial risk management {coniinued)

The below table demonsirates the sensifivity to a reasonably possible chonge in interest rates and foreigh

exchange rates.
Financlat risks Sensitivity analysk
Interest rate risk An  increase/decrease of one percentaQe point in LIBOR would

increase/decrease the Group's loss by £4,087,000 (20720: £5,117,000).

Foreign exchange Had GBP strengthened against the US doliar by an additional 1% during the
risk period, assuming ol other varables remained constant, the Group's 1oss
would hove decreosed by £288,000 [2020: £191.000).

Had GBP strengthened against the Ewro by an additionat 1% duning the
period, assuming al other variables remained constant, the Group's 1oss
would have decreased by £1 10,000 {2020 increase of £352,000].

Lguidity

The following tables detail the Group's contraoctual matudfies for its fingncial hiobiities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
kabllities and based on the eaniest dote on which the Group can be required i pay. The table Includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that intesest flows are floating rale, the undiscounted
amount is derived om interest rate curves at the bolance sheet date. The Group i not party to any
defivative confracts.

Less than 1

year 1.Syears 5+ yeous Total

£'000 £'000 £'Co0 £'000
27 March 2021
Trade and other payables 72,8465 - - 72,845
Finance legse iabilities 4,329 17,753 400,673 422,755
Bomowings 62.370 514,037 - 543,407
Yotal cash-seftled liobtities 146,554 531,790 400,473 1,07v,027
28 March 2020
Trade and other payables 115,106 - - 115,108
Finance lease hablities 4,286 17.578 405,639 427,503
Borrowings £9,370 456,670 - $24,040
Total cash-setiled liablitiies 188,742 474,248 405,637 1,048,549

The Company has no relevant cash-settled assets or icbilities ond 50 has no kquidity risk.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

29. Financlal insfruments

Categotles of inanclal instrumenis

Cash and financial Total
recelvables Gablitties at
amortiised cost
£000 £000 £000

27 March 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 185,432 - 185.432
Tiade and other receivables 39,340 - 39,340
Financict assets 224,792 - 224,792
Trade and other payables - 74,844 74,844
Borrowings . 583,407 583.407
Obligations under finance leases - 166,086 144,084
Financiat Hablifles - 824 339 324,33
Net financiol assets/{lHabilfies) 224,792 (824,33%) {599.547)
28 March 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 139,065 - 139,045
Trade and other receivabies 62,554 - 62,554
Finonclal assels 201,619 - 201,617
Financlal iablities
Trade and other payvabiss . 117,210 1 17,210_
Borrowings - 526,040 524,040
Obligations undert finance leases - 177,180 177.180
Financlal Hoblitties - 820,430 820,430
Net noncial asseis/fllabiliies 201,619 320,430 $18,811

Fak valve measurements

The directors consider that the camying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in tha financial statements approximale to their kair valuss,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

30. Coniraliing party

The Company's ultimate parent company ic IE tuxco §.a.r.l (Luxembouwg). which is controlied by Providence
Equity Pariners VIl A LP {Cayrmon klands) and Providence VI Global Hotdings LP (Cayman lslands. The
Directors consider these parties to be the confroling party.

31. Relaled party transactions

Group
Transactions with direciors and key management personnel

Remumneration paid to the directors or other. who are considered to be key managemeni personnel, is
disclosed in note 6.

Trading iransactions

During the period, the Group provided production-related services to associates and joint ventures of
£328,542 {202; £51.875). Al the end of the perad, balances of £1.951.044 (2020 £115,585) were owed fo
the Group by the associales and joint venturas. These bolances are unsecured ond will be settled
perodically over the course of the production. There are curently no provisions relating to these balances.
These transactions have been conducted ot arm's length.

32, Evenis affer balance sheet date

On 10 Decembar 2020, IEHL US Holdings, inc. entered into a sole and purchase agreement for the
ooquisition of Broqaway Son Francisco. LLC and Nederlander Detrait, LWC for consideration of £173.9
milion. On 2% March 2021 the conditions were met to define the acqguisition date of this transaction.

This acquisition adds two theatras in S3an Francisco ond three in Detroit 1o the Group's portfclio of ocwned

and cperated venues.

Subsequent 1o the period end the Group recelved €5.4 milion of COVID-19 relaled government gront
income from the German governmaeant.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsldiary entitles, assoclates and joint ventures and investments

Subsidiaries

100% of the ordinary share capital of ol subsicharies is owned direclly orindirectly uniess otherwise indicated.,
Where indicated, sharehokiing: are effective ownearship percentages as held by the parent fie. it o
subsidiary holding company Is 90% cwned, and owns 100% of ail its subsidiaries, all subsidiaries are shown as

being 0% owned,].

Incorporated in Uniled Kingdom

All subsidianes have laken the s47%a exemption from audit under parent company guorantee.

Subsidiary underiaking % Shares held Priincipal activity

Diract investments

Imtemational Entertainment Midco Limited? Holding company

Indirect Investments
AKA CP Limited? Marketing services
AKA Group Limifed? Holding compaony
AKA NYC Uimited? Marketing servicas
AKA Promotions Lmited? Marketing sevviceas
ATG Entertainment Limited?® Holding company
ATG London Limited?® Theatre operator and

ticketing company

ATG Management Limitea? Dommant
ATG Productions Limited?® Production company
Aylesbury Walerside Theole Limited® Theatre operator
Churchill Theatre Bromley Limited? Theaire operator
CP Studio Umited? Moarketing services
Digital Media Services UK Limited? Oigitol media services
Encore Intemational Merchandise Limited? Merchondiser
First Family Entertginment LLP3 Production company
G.5 Lashmar Limited? SO% Domnanl
Glasgow Theatres Umited?® Theatre operator
Highland Fing Japan Limited® Oomant
Intermational Entertainment finance Limited? Hokding compony
Intemational Entertanment investments Holding company
Limited?
London Theatre Chio Limitad? Dormant
Londion Tumshyle Limited? Domant
Mitton Keynes Theatre Umited? Theaire operator
New Wimbledon Theale Limited® Theatre operator
Playhouse Theotre Limited? Theatre operator
Richmond Thegatre Limited® Theatre opercior
Savoy Theatre Group Limited? Holding company
Savoy Theatre Holdings Limiited Domant
Savoy Theatrs Limited® Theatre operator
Screenstage Limited? Dormant
Jcreenstage Productions Limited? Darmart
Smart Plays Limited?® Oormant
Sonic friedman Productions Limited? Preduction company
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33, Subsidiary entities, assackdes and jaint ventures ond Investments (continved)

SFP Dreoams Limitad?

SFP Shows Limited®

SFP Sunny Limited?

Stoka-on-Trent Theatres Limited?®

The Ambassador Entertainment Group
Limited?

The Ambassador Theatre Group timited?
The Ambassador Theatre Group [Venues)
Limitedd

The Ambassador Theagire Group Overseas
Heldings Limited?

Theatre Monogement {Hoidings) Limited?
Theatre Management Limitad®

The Duke of York's Thegtre Limited?

The Tickat Machine Group Limited?®
Theatre Royal Brighton Limited®

Waiter's House Limited?

Woking Tumstyle Limited?

incorporafed in USA

Svbsidiary underaking

ACE Theaticgl Group, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises — Brookiyn, LLC?

Arts Center Enteqprises — New Odaans, LLC?
Arts Center Enferprises — Sugor band, LLCY
Ambaossadar Theatre Group — NY, LLC?

ATG Colonial, LCX

AlG San franceco

ATG Tickets US, LLCS

Creative Partnership LA, inc!?

Encore Merchandising, iInc'*

Hudsen Theatre, LLCH

IEHL U5 Holdings inc’

Kings Theatre Developer, LLC7

Kings Theatre Monager, LLC?

Lyric Theatre, LLCS

Majestic Presents LC7

Sasnger Aggregator Leverage Lender, LLC?
Saenger Theatre Developer, e

sSaenger Theatre Manager, LLCS

Sacenger Theatre Master Tenant LLTC

Saenger Theatre Partnership, Lid’

SFP-NY, LLC3

Scenger Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC?
Sundance Productions, iInc?

The Ambassador Theatre Group US Holdings, Incs

Sensitivity: Ilternal Lise
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% Shares heid

Production company
Production company
Production company
Theatre operator
Halding company

Heldling and productions
Theatre operatar

Holding company

Hoelding comparny
Theatire operator
Theatre operator
Ticketing agency
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Theatre operator

Principal aclivity

Manogement services
Theatra operator
Thealre aoperator
Theatra cperator
Venue operator
Production company
Venue operator
Venue operator
Ticketing agency
Mcrrketing services
Dormant

Theatre operator
Holding company
Venue developer
Managing member
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Financing company
Venue developer
Monaging member
Theatre operator
Dormant

Praduction company
Venue developer
Production company
Holding company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entities, associotes and Joint ventures and Invesiments {continved)

Incorporaied in Germany

The following subsidiaries have elecled to apply the exemplion available undsr §254, section 3 of the

Gennan Commercial Code and have not prepared and published financial statements under German

GAAFP because they ore included as tully consolidated subsidianies in the ATG Group finoncical staterments.

Subsidiary underaking

BB Entertainment Holding GrrioH*®
BB Group GmbH®

BB Promotion GmbH?

Bodyguard Verwattungs GmbH W@

Bodyguard musical GmbH & Co KG'?

ESMS GmbH?

Fandongo Musiced GmibsH?

On Stage Productions GmbH

Mehr-BB Entertainment GmibH!5

Deutscho Eintrittskarten TKS GmbH'%

Deutschea Eintrittskarten TKS Service Cerniter Gmbk's
Dirty Dancing Toumes Produktions GrmbH & Co. KG*3
Mehr-BB Theater GmisH'é

MMS Mehrl Marketing & Sales GmbH®s

Musical-Dome Verwaltungs- und Betriebsgeseliscaft
mbH'7

Starfight Express GmbH'8
HP-Theater Produktionsgeselschaft mioH!S
Dirty Dancing Gastspiel Verwaltungs GmbH1S

incorporated in Ausfralio

% Shares held

Svbsidiary undertaking % Shares held

AKA Promotions [Auskealia) Pty 11dY
Encore Merchandise {Australia) Pty Limited!!
The Ambassador Theatre Group Asia Pacific Ply

Limited'?

Associales and Joint Ventures
Name Incorposated
AS5S. Concerts & Promotion GmbH Gemony
HP West End Limiladt United Kingdom
JB UK Tour Il Prochuctions Ltd? United Kingdom
ISM Show AGD Switzerland

a8
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Principal aclivily

Halding company
Helding/Management
services company

Promotions company
Holding company
Praduction company
Marketing services
Production company
Production company
Holding company
Ticketing company
Ticketing company
Production company
Theater operaior
Marketing services
Theater operator

Production company
Production company
Holding company

Princlpal achivity
Markeding services
Dormant

Production compony

% Shares held  Princlpal aclivity

49 8%
25%
0%
50%

Production company
Prociuciion company
Produciion compony
Prociuction company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202}

33. Subsidiory entllies, associates and joint venlures ond Invesiments {confinuved)

Other invesiments
Name Incarporated 7% Shares held  Frincipal activity
Cieven Investments Ltd United Kingdom 10% Production compxuwy
Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company  USA 1.08% Venue developer
e
Merlin Entertainments plc Uritad Kingdom C.0% Entertainment group
Stageservics Frankfurtam Main GmbH Gemany 0% Production campariy

' These companies have o registered office of 28 5t. George Street, London W13 2FA

These companias have a registerad office of | 15 Shaftashury Avenue, Cambridge Circus, London WC2H 8AF
*Thess compoanies have a registered office of 20 Floor Alexander House, Church Path, Woking, Surrey
GU2t 6EJS

‘This company has a registered office of 5™ Floor, B9 New Bond Sireet, London W15 1DA

SThese companies have g registered office of Capitol Services. Inc., 1575 South State 5t., Ste 8, Dover,

DE 19901

sThese companies have a registered office of Capitol Corporate Services, inc., 8550 United Ploza Bidg. 1 Ste
305, Baton Rouge, LA 70809

’These companias have a registered office of Capitol Corporate Services, Inc., 204 E, 9th §t., Ste 1300,
Austin, TX 78701

EThis company has a registered oftice of Flealsor, Lasky, Aslan, Couture, 8, Garmise, Richaord Garmise, 551
Sih Ave #605, New Yark, NY 1Q174

*These companies have o registered office of RdntgensiraBe 7, 48167 Mannheim

0These companies have o registered office of LandsbergsiraBe 28, 50678 Ké&in

'"These companies have o registered office of Suite 4.1, Level 4, 3 Bowen Crescent, Melboume, Victoria
3004, Australic

2 This company has g registered office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 - 10 Bay Sitreat, Double Bay. NSW 2028

2This company has a registered office of Carmenstralfe 12, 8032 Tuich

" This company has a registered office of Kemoedienstr, 11, 50667 Kdin

15This company has a registered office of Brkrather Str. 30, 40233 DOsseldorf

¥ This company has a registered office of Banksstrale 28, 20097 Hamburg

2 This cornpany has a registered office of Goldgasse 1, 50468 Kain

B This company has a registered office of Stadionring 24, 44791 Bochum

*This company has a registered office of 1800 Post Oak Bivd, 6 Boulevard Place, Suite 450, Houston, Texas
77056

This company has aregistared office of 1313 N Market 8., Ste 5100 Wimington, DE 19801
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